WATERFORD SCHOOL DISTRICT PUBLIC HEARING ON PROPOSED 2020-2021 MILLAGE AND BUDGET Regular Meeting of the Board of Education Thursday, June 18, 2020 - 6:30 PM A G E N D A

- Opening of Public Hearing
- 2. Pledge of Allegiance
- 3. Roll Call
- 4. Public Hearing on Proposed 2020-2021 Millage Rate and Budget
- 5. Opening of Regular Meeting
- 6. Approval of the Regular Meeting Agenda
- 7. Audience Comments on Action Items
- 8. Consent Agenda
 - (a) Minutes
 - (b) Accounts Payable
 - (c) Financial Statement
 - (d) Support Staff Reports
 - (e) Resignations
 - (f) Contract Changes/Appointments
- 9. Response to COVID-19
- 10. Information
 - (a) 2020-2021 Instructional/Student Laptop Devices
 - (b) International Academy
- 11. New Business
 - (a) Superintendent's Recommendation
 - 1. Recommendation 101-19-20 Relative to Administrative Appointments
 - 2. Recommendation 102-19-20 Relative to Resolution: International Academy Governance
 - 3. Recommendation 103-19-20 Relative to Resolution: Amended IA Consortium Agreement
 - 4. Recommendation 104-19-20 Relative to Continuing Employment of Teaching Personnel
 - 5. Recommendation 105-19-20 Relative to Continuing Employment of Administrative Personnel
 - 6. Recommendation 106-19-20 Relative to Meal Prices 2020-2021
 - 7. Recommendation 107-19-20 Relative to Millage Rates 2020-2021
 - 8. Recommendation 108-19-20 Relative to Resolution: Revised Budget 2019-2020
 - 9. Recommendation 109-19-20 Relative to Resolution: Original Budget 2020-2021
 - (b) Consideration of Certain Purchases
 - 1. Recommendation 110-19-20 Instructional Devices Student Support Services
 - (c) President's Recommendation
 - 1. Recommendation 111-19-20 Relative to Continuing Employment of the Superintendent
 - 2. Recommendation 112-19-20 Relative to Board Operating Norms
 - 3. Recommendation 113-19-20 Relative to Committee of the Whole Rules
- 12. Superintendent's Report
- 13. Audience Comments on Non-Action Items
- 14. Board of Education Reports
- 15. Adjournment

WATERFORD SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD OF EDUCATION

Minutes - June 4, 2020 Virtual Meeting

OPENING

A Virtual Meeting, Zoom Webinar, of the Waterford School District Board of Education was held in accordance with the Governor's Executive Order in response to COVID-19. The meeting was called to order by President Ristich at 6:37 PM.

PLEDGE

The Board of Education and panel participated in the Pledge of Allegiance.

ROLL CALL

Present: Members: Petrusha, Sutherland, Ristich, Piggott, Josselyn and Torres

Absent: Member Halls

Others: Scott Lindberg, Kelly Allen, Lisa Eldredge, Bill Holbrook, Darin Holley, Amy Dagenhardt, Carly Stone,

Nadine Milostan, Janet McLeod, Samantha Mozdzierz, Joe Humphrey, Mary Craite, Art Welch, Lisa

Kane, Lori McCracken, Sarah Yates, Megan Roberts and others not registered.

In the absence of Member Halls, Robert Petrusha, Jr., served as Secretary.

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

Seeing no changes, the agenda was approved as presented.

AUDIENCE COMMENTS ON ACTION ITEMS

There were no audience comments on action items.

CONSENT AGENDA

- a. Minutes May 21, 2020 Virtual Meeting
- b. Resignations
- c. Teaching Contract Changes and Appointments

Seeing no objection, the consent agenda was approved as presented.

RESPONSE TO COVID-19

Superintendent Lindberg acknowledged spoke about the budget and introduced Cabinet members to report on the District's response to COVID-19.

Bill Holbrook, Assistant Superintendent of Business & Operations; Lisa Eldredge, Assistant Superintendent of Teaching & Learning Services; and Kelly Allen, Director of Communications and Community Relations, provided an update on the District's response to COVID-19. Members of the Board asked questions and offered comments and accolades.

INFORMATION

Instructional Devices

The Waterford School District secured a quote with PRESIDO Networked Solutions Group LLC to purchase 47 instructional equipment laptop devices. The use of these laptops will be 100 percent for special education.

Vendor	Brand	Model	Unit Price	Quantity	Total
PRESIDIO	Dell	Dell Latitude 3500	678.00	47	\$31,866.00

A recommendation to approve the purchase of 47 Dell Latitude instructional educational laptop devices, in the amount of \$31,866, will be presented on June 18, 2020. Funding: IDEA & General Funds

Short Term Borrowing

William Holbrook, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Operations, and Amy Dagenhardt, Director of Finance & Budget will share information relative to the 2020-21 Short Term borrowing requirements based on cash flow obligations. A recommendation for approval is presented under New Business.

Revised Budget 2019-2020

William Holbrook, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Operations, and Amy Dagenhardt, Director, Finance and Budget, will present information to the Board of Education relative to the 2019-2020 revised budget.

Original Budget 2020-2021

William Holbrook, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Operations, and Amy Dagenhardt, Director, Finance and Budget, will present information to the Board of Education relative to the 2020-2021 original budget.

2020-2021 Millage Rate

The Administration recommends the Waterford Board of Education certify the following tax levy to the Charter Townships of Waterford, Independence, White Lake, West Bloomfield, and the City of Lake Angelus for the 2020-2021 School District Tax Collection.

0	0	/NI	Homestead)
General	Operating.	(INOII)	nomestead)

Voted 2012 Total Authorized Compound Reduction Fraction * Total to be Levied		Mills Mills Based on \$2,619,815,348 Mills Taxable Value
<u>Debt Retirement:</u> (All Property) Total to be Levied	<u>6.75</u>	Mills
<u>Total Levy:</u> Total Tax Levy Homestead	6.75	Mills
Total Tax Levy Non-Homestead	24.75	Mills

The total levy (100%) is to be made in July 2020.

2020-2021 Meal Prices

The Administration recommends that the Board of Education establish the following school meal prices for the 2020/2021 school year. Prices remain the same as the 2019/20 school year. A recommendation will be presented for approval on June 18.

Breakfast	19/20	20/21
Elementary	\$1.75	\$1.75
Secondary	\$1.75	\$1.75
Adult	\$2.50	\$2.50
Lunch_	<u>19/20</u>	20/21
Elementary	\$2.75	\$2.75
Secondary	\$3.00	\$3.00
Adult	\$4.25	\$4.25

^{*} The 18 mill Non-Homestead property tax is subject to the Headlee Rollback calculation (Compound Reduction Fraction). The reduction fraction is calculated by Oakland County and is provided to Districts annually prior to June 1st.

Continuing Employment of Teachers

A recommendation for the re-employment of teaching personnel for the 2020-2021 school year, per the attached list, will be presented for approval on June 18.

Continuing Employment of Administrators

A recommendation will be presented on June 18, 2020, to approve the re-employment of administrative personnel on a non-administrative tenure basis, for a period of two years, July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2022, subject to appropriate written notice of termination prior to June 30, 2020, due to conditions requiring probation, layoff, reassignment and/or personnel reduction and termination.

Continuing Employment of the Superintendent

A recommendation to approve the Superintendent's Contract of Employment, with revisions, extending the contract through June 30, 2023 to maintain a three year contract, will be presented on June 18, 2020.

Board Meeting Structure

President Ristich facilitated a discussion with members of the Board of Education relative to the structure of board meetings for the 2020-2021 school year, specifically as it relates to adopting a Committee of the Whole approach. Rules for the COW as well as Operating Norms were provided for review, input, modification and ultimately adoption

NEW BUSINESS

Superintendent's Recommendation 98-19-20 Relative to Federal COVID-19 Funding Resolution

Moved by Member Sutherland and supported by Member Josselyn that the Board of Education approve the following resolution in support of Federal COVID funding for Michigan schools.

WHEREAS, in March 2020, the coronavirus disease that causes COVID-19 first appeared in Michigan, causing the Governor to declare a state of emergency under her powers in the Michigan Constitution; and

WHEREAS, in response to this emergency, after Michigan school districts were required to cancel in-person learning, school districts have risen to the challenge by being innovative and focused on their unique needs, provided distance learning for all Michigan students; and

WHEREAS, the COVID-19 pandemic has created tremendous uncertainty on how to provide quality education while maintaining safe conditions for both staff and students, causing districts to face new expenses and challenges for the upcoming school year, including providing personal protective equipment; creating new health screening procedures; increased cleaning costs; reorganization of learning spaces to accommodate social distancing; and expanded access to school-based mental health services; and

WHEREAS, both the state and national economies have suffered greatly as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, which has dramatically reduced state and local revenue placing enormous pressure on the state budget, including the School Aid Fund, which is predicted to be more than \$1 billion below previous estimates for the next two years; and

WHEREAS, due to falling revenues, local school districts face severe budget shortfalls for the current fiscal year, including a potential proration cut of at least \$650 per student, and similar budget problems for the upcoming year, making it difficult to provide high-quality education, access to technology, and safety for both students and staff;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Waterford School District supports the passage of legislation by the U.S. Congress appropriating needed funds to be distributed to states and local districts with maximum flexibility to fill budget gaps during this state of emergency; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Waterford School District urges congressional action to provide additional funding for the highly successful E-Rate Program, which helps schools ensure connectivity for online learning; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this Resolution shall be transmitted to our Governor, and to all members of the U.S. House of Representatives and Senate representing the families in our District.

Roll Call Vote: Petrusha (Yes), Ristich (Yes), Sutherland (Yes), Josselyn (Yes), Torres (Yes, Piggott (Yes)

Superintendent's Recommendation 99-19-20 Relative Short Term Borrowing

Moved by Member Sutherland and supported by Member Josselyn that the Board approve the attached resolution authorizing Short Term Borrowing for the 2020-21 school year, not to exceed \$16,000,000, based on cash flow obligations.

Roll Call Vote: Petrusha (Yes), Ristich (Yes), Sutherland (Yes), Josselyn (Yes), Torres (Yes, Piggott (Yes)

Superintendent's Recommendation 100-19-20 Relative to Purchase of Kids Read Now

Moved by Member Sutherland and supported by Member Josselyn that the Board of Education approve request for the Waterford School District offer the alternative summer reading program, Kids Read Now, for all JK-3rd grade students that meets the phases of the "Stay Home, Stay Safe" executive order and aligns to our state's Read By Grade Three Law. The cost of this program is \$34.95 per student with a total cost of \$80,874.30. Funding sources to support the costs of this purchase include a donation from the Waterford Foundation, an MDE Summer School Reading Program Grant and Federal Cares Act Funding.

Roll Call Vote: Petrusha (Yes), Ristich (Yes), Sutherland (Yes), Josselyn (Yes), Torres (Yes, Piggott (Yes)

SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT

Superintendent Lindberg offered reflections of his first year as Waterford's superintendent and thanked his team, as well as all of the Waterford School District staff, students and families for seeking the opportunities in the challenges we have faced.

AUDIENCE COMMENTS ON NON-ACTION ITEMS

Mary Craite thanked Janet McLeod for her service to WSD.

BOARD REPORTS

Member Torres spoke regarding the Chamber's Small Business Reopen Kits, Oakland Schools Government Relations Taskforce on Diversity and Equity.

Member Petrusha spoke about the new meeting structure.

Member Sutherland spoke about the challenges we have faced in 2020 and expressed gratitude to our community.

CLOSED SESSION

At 8:19 PM, the Board of Education moved to Closed Session for the purpose of discussing a written legal opinion from legal counsel. No action is taken during Closed Session. The Regular Meeting is deemed adjourned at the conclusion of the Closed Session.

Roll Call Vote: Petrusha (Yes), Ristich (Yes), Sutherland (Yes), Josselyn (Yes), Torres (Yes, Piggott (Yes)

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned by President Ristich at 9:34 PM.

ACTION

WATERFORD SCHOOL DISTRICT Board of Education 501 North Cass Lake Road Waterford, MI 48328

ITEM NO: 8.b.

TOPIC: ACCOUNTS PAYABLE FOR MAY 2020

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Board of Education approve the Check/Electronic Funds Transfer Register for the month of May 2020 as listed on pages 1-50, and the P-Card Account Statement listed on the last two pages.

EXPENDITURES BY DISBURSEMENT TYPE:

1. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (CHECKS)

General Fund/Pooled Cash	\$ 1,929,561.67
Special Ed Center Program	10,742.43
Community Service Fund	22,728.31
Food Service Fund	210,384.61
Debt Service Fund	-
Capital Projects: 2016 Series II	-
Capital Projects: 2016 Series III	-
Capital Projects: 2016 Series IV	479,459.92
Student Activity	-

TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE \$ 2,652,876.94

2. PAYMENTS BY WIRE OR ACH:

5/1/2020	Edustaff Contracted Substitutes/Staff	5,849.07
5/4/2020	5/3 Bank Food Service Bankcard Credit Fees	10.99
5/4/2020	Authnet Gateway Billing	30.00
5/5/2020	Food Service PayPal Payment Fees	26.30
5/5/2020	5/3 Bank Child Care SafeSave Bankcard Credit Fees	42.73
5/6/2020	Office of Retirement Service Payroll 4/24/2020	67,265.99
5/6/2020	Office of Retirement Service Payroll 4/24/2020	671,505.04
5/6/2020	Office of Retirement Service Payroll-UAAL April	601,526.24
5/8/2020	Edustaff Contracted Substitutes/Staff	53,215.81
5/8/2020	Food Service Meal Magic Fees	6.95
5/11/2020	5/3 Bank Merchant ACH-MPS Billing	67.70
5/11/2020	5/3 Bank Food Service ACH-MPS Billing	28.51
5/15/2020	Edustaff Contracted Substitutes/Staff	3,519.75
5/20/2020	Office of Retirement Service Payroll 5/08/2020	71,827.39
5/20/2020	Office of Retirement Service Payroll 5/08/2020	694,611.63
5/22/2020	Edustaff Contracted Substitutes/Staff	47,741.86
5/27/2020	5/3 Bank Purchasing Cards - APR Expenses	8,038.81
5/29/2020	Edustaff Contracted Substitutes/Staff	3,519.75
TOTAL WIRES OR A	ACH	\$ 2,222,985.45

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS MAY 2020 \$ 4,875,862.39

RATIONALE: Invoices have been processed by Accounts Payable and Purchasing per requisitions

submitted by various departments.

BUDGETARY

INFORMATION: All within prescribed budget allocations.

EXHIBITS: Attached Schedule.

RESOURCE PERSON(S): William Holbrook, CPA, <u>Assistant Superintendent of Business and Operations</u>

Amy Dagenhardt, Director of Finance & Budget

Samantha Mozdzierz, <u>Director of Nutrition & Purchasing Services</u>

Date of Board of Education Meeting: June 18, 2020

WATERFORD SCHOOL DISTRICT STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES GENERAL FUND FOR THE ELEVEN MONTHS ENDED MAY 2020

REVENUE	<u>BUDGET</u>	_	TUAL PLUS CUMBRANCE	PERCENT OF BUDGET
LOCAL				
PROPERTY	\$ 12,186,415	\$	11,653,438	95.6%
OTHER	1,885,495	•	656,879	34.8%
			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
TOTAL	14,071,910		12,310,317	87.5%
STATE				
MEMBERSHIP AID	51,674,928		42,680,907	82.6%
CATEGORICAL AID	18,303,115		15,117,458	82.6%
TOTAL	69,978,043		57,798,365	82.6%
FEDERAL	6,641,093		4,274,375	64.4%
INCOMING TRANSFER	6,001,801		5,501,651	91.7%
TOTAL REVENUE	\$ 96,692,847	\$	79,884,708	82.6%
TOTAL REVENUE	\$ 90,092,647	Ş	79,004,700	82.0%
<u>EXPENDITURES</u>				
INSTRUCTION:				
ELEMENTARY	\$ 9,163,372	\$	7,185,139	78.4%
MIDDLE SCHOOL	4,512,001		3,413,551	75.7%
HIGH SCHOOL	6,723,830		5,378,240	80.0%
SUMMER SCHOOL	19,574		27,735	141.7%
EARLY CHILDHOOD	1,752,394		1,513,544	86.4%
SPECIAL ED	11,079,562		8,260,451	74.6%
COMP ED	3,213,936		2,181,533	67.9%
VOC ED	937,231		647,157	69.0%
TOTAL INSTRUCTION	37,401,900		28,607,350	76.5%
SUPPORT SERVICE:				
PUPIL SERVICE	7,375,788		5,656,085	76.7%
INSTR STAFF	2,231,343		1,754,970	78.7%
GENERAL ADM	1,337,914		909,430	68.0%
SCHOOL ADM	3,757,637		3,453,341	91.9%
BUSINESS	10,626,894		10,570,509	99.5%
CENTRAL	24,370,870		22,200,454	91.1%
TOTAL SUPPORT	49,700,446		44,544,789	89.6%
OTHER:				
ATHLETICS	1,364,798		1,139,435	83.5%
COMMUNITY SERVICE	101,984		44,766	43.9%
FEDERAL PROGRAMS	7,034,172		4,527,371	64.4%
DEBT	1,078,000		1,010,225	93.7%
TEACHER RETIREMENT SAVINGS	(300,000)		(275,000)	91.7%
INTERFUND TRANSFERS	305,303		279,861	91.7%
TOTAL OTHER	9,584,257		6,726,658	70.2%
TOTAL EXPENDITURES	\$ 96,686,603	\$	79,878,797	82.6%
REV. OVER/(UNDER) EXP.	\$ 6,244	\$	5,911	

WATERFORD SCHOOL DISTRICT SUPPORT STAFF REPORT JUNE 2020

CONTRACT CHANGES/RESIGNATIONS **Non Affiliated Employee "NAE" formerly WFSP/Blue Book**

Aubry, Kevin – Student Worker – P&F (Non-Union)

Mott & Kettering High School Furlough Effective: May 1, 2020

Baran, Caramella – Student Worker – P&F (Non-Union)

Mott & Kettering High School Furlough Effective: May 1, 2020

Burke, Sean – Student Worker – P&F (Non-Union)

Mott & Kettering High School Furlough Effective: May 1, 2020

Caspers, Seth – Student Worker – P&F (Non-Union)

Mott & Kettering High School Furlough Effective: May 1, 2020

Collins, Blake – Student Worker – P&F (Non-Union)

Mott & Kettering High School Furlough Effective: May 1, 2020

Dworkin, Joseph – Student Worker – P&F (Non-Union)

Mott & Kettering High School Furlough Effective: May 1, 2020

Gump, Kiley – Student Worker – P&F (Non-Union)

Mott & Kettering High School Furlough Effective: May 1, 2020

Jones, Nathaniel – Student Worker – P&F (Non-Union)

Mott & Kettering High School Furlough Effective: May 1, 2020

Kasdorf, Pallase – Student Worker – P&F (Non-Union)

Mott & Kettering High School Furlough Effective: May 1, 2020

Malysa, Patryk – Student Worker – P&F (Non-Union)

Mott & Kettering High School Furlough Effective: May 1, 2020

Osterman, Mia – Student Worker – P&F (Non-Union)

Mott & Kettering High School Furlough Effective: May 1, 2020

Purcell, Halle - Student Worker - P&F (Non-Union)

Mott & Kettering High School Furlough Effective: May 1, 2020

Wesley, Brian – Student Worker – P&F (Non-Union)

Mott & Kettering High School Furlough Effective: May 1, 2020

White, Gabrielle – Student Worker – P&F (Non-Union)

Mott & Kettering High School Furlough Effective: May 1, 2020

Fougner, Kristine – Food Service Assistant (MESPA III)

Senior Center

Resignation Effective: May 6, 2020

White, Janet – Secretary (MESPA I)

Kurzman-Crary Campus

Retirement Effective: May 15, 2020

CONTRACT CHANGES/APPOINTMENTS *	*Non Affiliated Em	ployee "NAE" formerly W	/FSP/Blue Book**
No Change			
0 -			

Resource Person(s): <u>Janet McLeod</u>, <u>Director of Human Resources</u>
Date of Board of Education Meeting: <u>June 18</u>, 2020

CONSENT

WATERFORD SCHOOL DISTRICT Board of Education 501 N Cass Lake Road Waterford, Michigan 48328

ITEM NO.: 8.e. Consent Agenda

TOPIC: Retirements/Resignations/Leave of Absence Expirations

It is recommended that the Board of Education accept the following resignation(s)/retirement(s):

Peterson, Deborah – Special Education Teacher Mason Middle School Resignation

Effective: June 30, 2020

Spencer, Jeffrey – Programmer Kurzman Administration Retirement

Effective: September 30, 2020

CONSENT

WATERFORD SCHOOL DISTRICT Board of Education 501 N Cass Lake Road Waterford, Michigan 48328

ITEM NO.: 8.f. Consent Agenda

TOPIC: Teaching Contract Changes/Appointments

It is recommended that the Board of Education approve the following teaching contract changes and appointments for the 2019-2020 school year:

Replacing: Jeff Totten

Molina, Cynda – Special Education Teacher Beaumont & Donelson Hills Elementary Probationary Contract

Effective: August 24, 2020

Resource Person(s): <u>Janet McLeod, Director of Human Resources</u>

Date of Board of Education Meeting: June 18, 2020

INFORMATION

WATERFORD SCHOOL DISTRICT Board of Education 501 N. Cass Lake Road Waterford, Michigan 48328

ITEM NO.: 10.a. Information Item

TOPIC: 2020/21 Instructional/Student Laptop Devices

The Waterford School District secured a quote with PRESIDO Networked Solutions Group LLC to purchase 26 staff instructional and 80 student educational laptop devices for Kingsley Montgomery School. The use of these laptop devices will be 100 percent for special education.

Vendor	Brand	Model	Unit Price	Quantity	Total
PRESIDIO	Dell	Dell Latitude 3500 *Model number may change due to availability*	\$770.00	26	\$20, 020.00
PRESIDIO	Dell	Dell Latitude *Model number is in the process of being been revised due to availability*	\$633.45	80	\$50, 676.00

It is recommended that the board of education approve the purchase of 106 Dell Latitude instructional educational laptop devices in the amount of \$70,696 and will be presented on July 16, 2020.

Funding: Center-Based Tuition

Resource Persons: <u>Darin Holley, Director of Instructional Services & Technology</u>

Nadine M. Milostan, Executive Director of Student Support Services

Date of Board of Education Meeting: June 18, 2020

INFORMATION

WATERFORD SCHOOL DISTRICT Board of Education 501 N. Cass Lake Road Waterford, Michigan 48328

ITEM NO.:	10.b.	Information Item
TOPIC:		International Academy
Academy Co	onsortium	on is in receipt of final documents related to the updated International agreements and a FAQ developed in part as a result of the last formal ttee meeting and voluntary Q&A session with legal counsel.
resolution w	ill comple Agreeme	lutions that all Consortium Boards are being asked to consider. One te the governing body while the other will formalize the updated nt. A recommendation to approve both resolutions will be presented
Resource P	erson:	Scott A. Lindberg, Superintendent of Schools
Date of Boa	ard of Edu	ucation Meeting: June 18, 2020

International Academy Consortium Agreement Amendments Since April 28, 2020 JSC Meeting May 31, 2020

The International Academy ("IA") Joint Steering Committee ("JSC") held a meeting on April 28, 2020 to discuss the draft amendments to the IA Consortium Agreement. Superintendents and individual board members of all Consortium school districts were able to ask questions about the Agreement. As a result of the April 28, 2020 meetings, and the questions raised at the meeting, the IA Consortium Agreement has been further updated.

The amendments to the IA Consortium Agreement since the April 28, 2020 JSC meeting are as follows:

- The Preamble on page 1 of the Agreement was updated to include a reference to the Intergovernmental Transfers of Functions and Responsibilities Act, MCL 125.531 *et seq*.
- The Definition of "Governing Body" in Article II, Paragraph H was updated to remove a reference to "or designee."
- Article III, Section 3, Paragraph A was updated, and the phrase "or where appropriate a Michigan public post-secondary education institution" was removed.
- Article III, Section 3, Paragraph D was updated to include a requirement of a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Governing Body to expel Participating Districts from the Consortium.
- Article IV, Section1 Paragraph B (1)(c) was updated to allow the Governing Body to hold electronic meetings, provided the public can participate in such meetings. In addition, the Paragraph was updated to allow Governing Body members to appoint designees for informational purposes, by not for voting on any action item that comes before the Governing Body. Finally, the Paragraph was updated to include a provision that the Bloomfield Hills Campus shall be deemed the principal office for purposes of the Open Meetings Act.
- Article IV, Section 1, Paragraph C (2)(f) was updated to state that Participating Districts are to receive the tuition rate calculation formula and tuition rates by December 10th of each year.
- Article IV, Section 1, Paragraph C (4) was updated to clarify that a Fiscal Agent cannot incur debt obligations "on behalf of the Consortium" without obtaining written approval from Participating Districts at the Campus.

- Article V, Section 1, Paragraph B was updated to specify the budget obligations of the OKMA campus and that mid-year budget amendments are to be presented to Participating Districts.
- Article V, Section 1, Paragraphs C & D were removed because the obligations that were contained in those Paragraphs are contained in Paragraph B.
- Article V, Section 1, Paragraph E was updated to clarify how Hold Harmless Districts' foundation allowances are calculated for the per pupil charge.
- Article V, Section 1, Paragraph F was updated to state that the contribution offsets against the per pupil charge were net of UAAL costs that are funded by the State and any pass through funding.
- Article VI, Section 2 was updated to clarify the employer of the Academy Principal.

INTERNATIONALACADEMY

CONSORTIUM AGREEMENT

Table of Contents

I. PREAMBLE	1
II. DEFINITIONS	1
III. DURATION, WITHDRAWAL AND DISSOLUTION	3
Section 1. Membership.	3
Section 2. Enactment.	3
Section 2. Admission/Withdrawal/Dissolution.	3
7. Temporary Discontinuation of Participation	5
Section 3. Expiration.	7
IV. STRUCTURE AND OPERATION	7
Section 1. General Provisions	7
Section 2. Consortium Shares	14
Section 3. Transfer of Shares	14
V. FINANCIAL PROVISIONS	14
Section 1	14
VI. PERSONNEL	
Section 1. Teaching Staff.	17
Section 2. Academy Principal. Assistant Principal(s) and Employees other than Certified Teaching	
Personnel	
VII. LIABILITIES	
Section 1. Insurance.	
VIII. NON-DISCRIMINATION	
Section 1. Equal Employment Opportunity	
Section 2. Non-Discrimination Clause.	
IX. DISPUTE RESOLUTION	
Section 1. Matters to be Submitted to Arbitration.	
Section 2. Procedure	
Section 3. Effect of Arbitration Award.	
Section 4. Arbitration as Bar to Suit.	
X. MISCELLANEOUS	
Section 1. Successor and Assigns	
Section 2. Governing Law.	
Section 3. Severability	
Section 4. Notices	
Section 5. Amendment; Waivers	
Section 6. Entire Agreement	
Section 7. Further Matters.	
Section 8. Paragraph Headings.	
Section 9. Authorization.	
Section 10. Counterparts.	
APPENDIX A	
APPENDIX B	
APPENDIX C	28
APPENDIX D	31

AMENDED AND RESTATED CONSORTIUM AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED AGREEMENT between and among the Boards of Education of the school districts listed in Appendix A attached hereto (hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Consortium") is for the purpose of establishing an international academy located on one or more sites for grades 9-12 as authorized by Act 35, Public Acts of Michigan, 1951, being MCL 124.1 *et seq*, as amended, the Intergovernmental Transfers of Functions and Responsibilities Act, MCL 125.531 *et seq*. and Sections 11a and 1282 of the Revised School Code, being MCL 380.1 *et seq*, as amended. With the signatures of their respective representatives, the parties to this Agreement voluntarily bind themselves to the covenants contained herein and the mutual consideration that establishes this Agreement.

I. PREAMBLE

- A. Section 11a of the Revised School Code, as amended, authorizes a general powers school district to enter into agreements or cooperative arrangements with other entities, public or private, or join organizations as part of performing the functions of the school district.
- B. Section 1282 of the Revised School Code, as amended, enables each of the Participating Districts, in its own right, to establish and carry on the grades, schools, and departments it considers necessary or desirable for the maintenance and improvement of its schools and determine the courses of study to be pursued. Participating Districts have determined to jointly exercise that authority through the Consortium formed by this Agreement, believing that this form of organization will facilitate the most efficient and effective method of program delivery.
- C. This Agreement is also created under the authority of Public Act 35, Public Acts of Michigan, 1951, being MCL 124.1 *et seq*, and the Intergovernmental Transfers of Functions and Responsibilities Act, MCL 125.531 *et seq.*, and shall be implemented in conformance with the provisions of those statutes.

II. DEFINITIONS

As used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meanings unless the context otherwise requires:

- A. "<u>ACADEMY</u>" Shall mean the International Academies operated by the Consortium.
- B. "AGREEMENT" Shall mean this Amended and Restated Consortium Agreement and its attached appendices, as amended, restated or modified from time to time. References in this Amended and Restated Consortium Agreement to "Agreement", "hereof", "herein", "hereby", and "hereunder" shall be deemed to refer to the Amended and Restated Consortium Agreement in its entirety and shall not be limited to the particular text, article or section in which such words appear.

- C. "<u>CAMPUS</u>" Shall mean a specific site of the International Academy program with its own geographically separate location approved by the Consortium to operate under the terms and conditions of this Agreement. Approved campuses are set forth in Appendix D hereto.
- D. "CONSORTIUM" Refers to the cooperative and joint endeavor between the signatory Districts to provide the international academy program at one or more Campuses.
- E. "COOPERATIVE PROGRAM" Shall mean the international academy program to be offered by the Participating Districts.
- F. "<u>DISTRICT</u>" or "<u>SCHOOL DISTRICT</u>" Shall mean a general powers school district defined in Section 6 of the Revised School Code, as amended.
- G. "<u>FISCAL AGENT</u>" Bloomfield Hills School District, Troy School District, and Huron Valley Schools shall serve as the Fiscal Agents for all Consortium Programming and services at their respective campuses
- H. "GOVERNING BODY" Shall mean the governing entity of the International Academy Consortium. The Governing Body shall consist of a five-member body of the superintendent of the three Fiscal Agents and two additional at-large members elected by majority vote of all Participating Districts.
- I. "JOINT ADVISORY COMMITTEE" Refers to the principal advisory committee of the Consortium, the membership of which is composed of an administrative representative of each of the Participating Districts.
- J. "<u>LAWS</u>" or "<u>APPLICABLE LAW</u>" Shall mean the Revised School Code (as amended), the State School Aid Act, and all other common law, ordinances, statutes, constitutional provisions, rules, regulations, orders, injunctions, or decisions of any government or political subdivision or agency thereof, or any court or similar entity established thereof.
- K. "<u>PARTICIPATING DISTRICT</u>" or "<u>PARTICIPANT</u>" refers to the Consortium's Participating Districts listed in Exhibit A attached hereto and school districts admitted as new Participating Districts or Participants.
- L. "SCHOOL CODE" Shall mean the Revised School Code (1976 PA 451, MCL 380.1, et seq), as amended, or as may be amended from time to time or as may be superseded or replaced by legislation having a substantially comparable purpose.
- M. "<u>SHARES</u>" Shall mean the number of student spaces available, at a particular campus, as applicable, and as more thoroughly described in Article IV, Section 2.

N. "<u>STATE SCHOOL AID ACT</u>" – Shall mean 1979 PA 94, MCL 388.1601; MSA 15.1919(901), as amended, or as may be amended from time to time or as may be superseded or replaced by legislation having a substantially comparable purpose.

III. DURATION, WITHDRAWAL AND DISSOLUTION

Section 1. Membership.

A. <u>Definition of Membership</u>.

- 1. Participating Districts are members of the Consortium by:
 - a. owning at least one Consortium share;
 - b. being a signatory to the Agreement; and
 - c. participating in the enrollment process for grade nine as defined by Section IV, 1C of this Article.
- B. <u>Levels of Participation</u>. Levels of membership participation in the Consortium are defined in Appendix C. Only Level 1, Full Participating District Member, and Level 2, Participating District in Temporary Discontinuation of Participation, are Consortium members.
- C. <u>Rights, Duties and Obligations of Consortium Members</u>. The rights, duties and obligation of Consortium members as they relate to participation, duration and termination in the Consortium are set forth in Article III.

 Section 2. Enactment.
- A. This Agreement shall become effective only upon the occurrence of all of the following:
- 1. Enactment of a resolution by a majority of the Participants authorizing the establishment of and/or participation in an international academy program pursuant to Sections 11a and 1282 of the School Code and Public Act 35, Public Acts of Michigan, 1951, as amended, adopting this Agreement, and authorizing its Superintendent to execute this Agreement on behalf of that Participating District.
- 2. By approval of this Agreement, each Participating District approves the billing and payment schedule for operating costs and start-up costs as set forth in Appendix B.

Section 3. Admission/Withdrawal/Dissolution.

A. <u>Admission of New Participants</u>. A Michigan school district which is not a party to this Agreement or a member of the Consortium may be admitted to membership as a Participant by action of the Governing Body. If approved by the Governing Body, the decision to admit a new Participant must be ratified by a majority the participating districts to be effective.

- B. <u>Limited Effects of Withdrawal</u>. No resignation or withdrawal by a Participant or a Fiscal Agent shall operate to annul this Agreement during its term, terminate the existence of the Consortium, or relieve the withdrawing Participant or Fiscal Agent from its obligation to abide by the terms of this Agreement unless otherwise agreed upon by all of the Participants.
- C. <u>Unilateral Withdrawal</u>. A Participant may unilaterally withdraw from its participation in the Consortium by giving written notice to the Governing Body prior to the 15th of January before the beginning of the next school year. Participation shall only be withdrawn effective at the end of a Consortium fiscal year. In the event of unilateral withdrawal by a Participant during the term of this Agreement (without the written consent of the Governing Body) the Participant shall forfeit any right it may possess, under this Agreement or otherwise, to distribution of Consortium assets or funds. Those assets or funds shall then revert to the Consortium. Unilateral withdrawal of participation during the term of this Agreement shall not relieve the withdrawing Participant from its obligations under this Agreement, including but not limited to:
 - 1. the obligation, if any, to continue to assign its employees to the cooperative program to the end of the school year, or such other date as shall be agreed upon by the Governing Body;
 - 2. continuation of enrollment of its students in Cooperative Programs to the end of the school year, or such other date as shall be agreed upon between the Participants;
 - 3. unpaid Per Pupil Charges for past or current enrolled students from the withdrawing Participating District;
 - 4. its share of any uninsured liabilities incurred for claims, whether already or later asserted, during the period of its participation in the Consortium; and;
 - 5. Per pupil operational costs for enrolled students from the withdrawing Participating District who remain in attendance.

In the event of withdrawal of a Participating District or the Fiscal Agent at the expiration of this Agreement, the withdrawing and remaining Participating and/or Fiscal Agent Districts shall within thirty (30) days attempt to resolve their respective remaining rights and obligations. If agreement by all remaining Participating and Fiscal Agent Districts and the withdrawing District is not reached at the expiration of the above interval, any party to this Agreement may refer the matter to the Dispute Resolution procedures identified in Article IX of this Agreement.

No withdrawal under this section shall occur if a District becomes the Fiscal Agent of a new Campus, resulting in a reallocation of Consortium shares.

D. <u>Expulsion of Participants</u>. If any Participant shall fail to comply with any of the terms or provisions of this Agreement, or default in any of its obligations under this Agreement and shall fail to correct such default or non-compliance within thirty (30) days after written

notice, the Governing Body, by a two-thirds (2/3) vote, may terminate the Participant's inclusion in the Consortium and its Programs; provided that the terminated Participant shall continue to be obligated for payment of its share of Consortium costs as if the Participant had determined of its own will to terminate its participation.

- E. <u>Dissolution</u>. Dissolution of the Consortium may occur upon a majority approving vote of all Participants. Dissolution shall not take effect until the end of a Consortium fiscal year, except to the extent the Governing Body considers and expressly approves an earlier dissolution date. During such time the Governing Body shall proceed to wind up the affairs of the Consortium. Nothing in this Agreement precludes the parties remaining after dissolution from forming a successor or new consortium.
- F. Winding Up and Property Allocation. Upon or pending dissolution of the Consortium, the Governing Body shall proceed to wind up the affairs of the Consortium. Subject to compliance with legal requirements pertaining to any Consortium property or moneys, and subject also to the provisions of this Agreement, the Fiscal Agents, separately for each Campus, shall pay Consortium liabilities and execute appropriate conveyances of interests in any Consortium property or moneys as determined by the Governing Body. Any remaining Consortium property, in cash or in kind, shall be distributed, separately for each Program, to Participants on the basis of the Participants' Support Payments on average for the previous three years. Upon effective distribution of Consortium property and otherwise winding-up the affairs of the Consortium, the Governing Body shall file with Consortium records a written instrument stating the effective date of dissolution, and notice all Participants by copy of such instrument. Any disputes among the Governing Body, Participants and/or the Fiscal Agents as to respective rights and obligations for winding up of Consortium affairs, including failure to reach agreement as to winding up within 30 days of the Participants' vote approving dissolution, shall be resolved under the Dispute Resolution provisions of this Agreement.

G. Temporary Discontinuation of Participation.

- 1. Request. Participating Districts may remain in membership in the Consortium without participating in the grade nine enrollment process by submitting a "temporary discontinuation of participating membership" in writing to the Governing Body on or before the 15th of January prior to the school year that the discontinuation would be in effect. Failure to file a request on or before the 15th of January will result in a denial of the request for a temporary discontinuation of participating membership. If a Participating District fails to provide timely notice pursuant to this subsection, it forfeits the right for "temporary discontinuation of participation" for the next school year, but may still request the right of first refusal as specified in Article III, Section 3, Paragraph H.
- 2. <u>Approval</u>. Within 30 days of the receipt of the written request for temporary discontinuation of Participation, the Governing Body shall meet and by a vote of a majority of the members of the Governing Body grant or deny the request.

- 3. <u>Financial Responsibility</u>. Participating Districts that are granted a temporary discontinuation of participation shall be financially responsible for 50% of the per-student-cost (tuition) of their grade nine spaces unless the spaces are filled by another Participating District or a non-participating District. The spaces shall be considered filled, for purposes of determining the Participating District's financial responsibility if the Campus enrollment for grade nine equals the total number of available Campus spaces on the official September count day. In the event that grade nine official enrollment count does not equal or exceed the Campus available spaces, the unfilled spaces will be paid on a prorata-by-shares previously held basis. "Pro-rata-by-shares previously held" shall mean 50% of the cost of the unfilled spaces will be divided among the Participating Districts (that have been granted a temporary discontinuation of participating Districts.
- 4. <u>Failure to Renew Participation</u>. A Participating District which has temporary discontinuation of membership shall notify the Governing Body in writing on or before January 15th of the year of non-participation of its intent to resume participation or withdraw from the Consortium. Failure to provide notice by January 15th will result in a unilateral withdraw from the Consortium under Article III, Section 3, Paragraph C.

H. <u>Status of Districts That Have Unilaterally Withdrawn from Consortium Membership.</u>

Participating Districts that have unilaterally withdrawn from the Consortium under Article III, Section 3, Paragraph C or by failing to meet the terms of membership as defined in Section 1 of Article III, may request in writing to the Governing Body that it be granted "first right of refusal" status when Consortium shares become available.

A request for "first right of refusal" shall be made on or before January 15th preceding the school year for which the shares become available. Districts granted "first right of refusal" status shall be placed in order by the date of their request for purposes of allocation and assignment of available shares. The "first right of refusal" shall place the District before non-member Districts requesting membership to the Consortium. Districts granted "first right of refusal" shall not have priority over Participating Districts which have previously requested available shares and have students in attendance at the Academy.

Within 30 days of the written request for "first right of refusal" the Governing Body shall either grant or deny the request and promptly notify the District. The District shall accept or reject the shares within 30 calendar days of the notification. A District that rejects the shares shall forfeit its "first right of refusal" for the remainder of the school year. The District shall also be granted the opportunity to fill available individual seats as provided for in Article IV, Section 1C, subsections 1 and 2 prior to non-participating districts requesting membership. Upon acceptance of the shares, the District shall agree to be bound by the provisions of this Agreement and shall again become a Participating District.

I. <u>Appeal Process for Membership Status Disputes.</u>

Participating Districts can appeal their membership status as determined by the Consortium Agreement and the Governing Body by making a written appeal to the Superintendents of the Participating Districts with notification to the Governing Body. For the appeal to impact district status it must be filed by January 30th prior to the affected school year. The appealing District may present an oral appeal in conjunction with the written request to the Superintendents' meeting. The meeting will be open to Superintendents (or their designated alternate) and their Governing Body representatives only. The Superintendents will meet to review and determine the merits of the appeal and render a decision by April 30th of the same year of the appeal. The Superintendents may deny the appeal, accept the appeal in whole or part and specify the terms, conditions or obligations of the District. The Fiscal Agent of the applicable Campus will serve as the chairperson of the appeal hearing while maintaining full voting rights. Superintendents will vote in person or by email or signed facsimile, if not in attendance at the appeal hearing. The Superintendents' discussion will be guided by the intent of the Consortium Agreement and will be determined by majority vote of the Participating Districts. If there is an even number of Participating Districts and the vote is tied, the vote of the Fiscal Agent shall be the deciding vote. The vote of the Superintendents shall be considered an action on behalf of their District. The Superintendents' decision is final and cannot be appealed except as identified in Article IX: Dispute Resolution of this Consortium Agreement.

Section 4. Expiration.

The term of this Agreement shall continue until such time as the Participants determine to dissolve the Consortium and completion of winding up the affairs of the Consortium as provided in this Agreement, subject also to provisions of this Agreement with respect to withdrawal or amendment. However, this Agreement shall automatically continue for a period of one (1) year unless a majority of the Participating Districts, by a vote of their Boards of Education no later than January 31st of the immediate preceding school year, determine not to extend the Agreement.

IV. STRUCTURE AND OPERATION

Section 1. General Provisions.

A. <u>Program Description</u>. The Academy will consist of one or more grade 9-12 high schools operating as an international school program for pupils of the Participating Districts. The Academy will be committed to developing students for professional, political and business leadership in an international environment. It is the intent of the Cooperative Program to seek acceptance by the International Baccalaureate Organization to operate as an International Baccalaureate School. Students will attend the Academy full time but are free to participate in co-curricular activities at their school of residence. Students must be committed to pursue the International Baccalaureate degree and shall not substitute Advanced Placement classes for the International Baccalaureate classroom requirements.

B. Structure.

1. The Consortium shall be governed by a five (5) member body consisting of the duly appointed representatives of its three (3) Fiscal Agents and two (2) additional atlarge members elected by majority vote of all Participating Districts ("Governing Body"). With respect to the initial election of the two (2) at-large members, the three (3) Fiscal Agent representatives shall create a ballot with the names of the Superintendents (or their designees) of all Participating Districts that wish to have representation on the Governing Body and disseminate the ballot to the Participating Districts' boards of education for vote. Placement on the ballot shall require a resolution of a Participating District's board of education designating the district's Superintendent (or his/her designee) as that district's proposed representative as an at-large member of the Governing Body. The election shall take place as soon as practicable after the effective date of this Amendment. The Fiscal Agents shall be entitled to cast votes for at-large members.

In the event that only one of the proposed at-large members of the Governing Body on the ballot receives a majority of votes by the Participating Districts, a new ballot shall be created by the three (3) Fiscal Agent Representatives with the names of the proposed representatives who received the two (2) next highest number of votes and a new election shall take place as soon as practicable to select the remaining at-large member. In the event that none of the proposed at-large members receives a majority of votes, a new ballot shall be created by the three (3) Fiscal Agent representatives comprised of the names of the three (3) proposed representatives who receive the highest number of votes, and a new election shall take place whereby the two (2) proposed representatives who receive the highest number of votes shall be selected as at-large members of the Governing Body. In the case of a tie vote for one of the two membership positions, a runoff election shall be held as soon as practicable.

The Fiscal Agent representatives shall serve as permanent members of the Governing Body, subject to the separation of their employment with a Fiscal Agent and the appointment of a new representative by a duly adopted resolution of the Fiscal Agent's board of education. The at-large members of the Governing Body shall be elected to and shall serve terms of two (2) years. Subsequent to the initial election of the two (2) at-large members, the entire Governing Body shall be responsible for administering the at-large member election process described herein.

In the event of a vacancy on the Governing Body resulting from the resignation, separation from employment, or death of an at-large member, that member's district's board of education shall duly adopt a resolution as soon as practicable appointing a replacement to serve out the remainder of that member's two (2) year term.

The Governing Body's powers shall be limited to the following: (i) The allocation of overhead expenses of the Consortium to each Campus Program, including without limitation (a) dues and fees payable to the International Baccalaureate organization, (b) administrative expenses incurred on behalf of all three (3) Campus Programs; and (c) other expenses incurred on behalf of more than one Campus Program; (ii) Monitoring and ensuring

compliance with the standards and certification requirements of the International Baccalaureate organization; (iii) Management of the process of electing at-large members to the Governing Body; (iv) Oversight of the withdrawal and dissolution processes as stated in this Agreement; and (v) Any other express power or authority granted to the Governing Body in this Agreement. All other powers not expressly reserved to the Governing Body shall be exercised by the Fiscal Agents as more fully described in the Agreement.

- a. <u>Officers.</u> The Governing Body shall appoint the following officers: president and secretary. The Governing Body shall appoint a non-voting secretary, who may be an employee of one of the Fiscal Agents. The non-voting secretary shall take minutes of all meetings of the Governing Body.
- b. <u>Bylaws and Policies.</u> The Governing Body may adopt by-laws, policies, guidelines, rules and regulations.
- c. <u>Meetings.</u> The Governing Body shall meet at least on a quarterly basis and shall post public notice of its meetings in accordance with the Open Meetings Act. For Open Meetings Act purposes, the Governing Body's principal office shall be the Bloomfield Hills campus. The Governing Body may meet via electronic means provided the Open Meetings Act requirements for public participation are adhered to for such meetings. Governing Body members may designate other employees of its Participating District to attend meetings for information purposes; however, designees do not have the authority to cast votes on any action item that comes before the Governing Body.
- d. <u>Actions of the Governing Body.</u> Unless expressly otherwise provided in this Agreement, action of the Governing Body shall be accomplished by majority vote of its five (5) members.
- e. <u>Gifts, Bequests, and Donations to the Consortium</u>. Should a gift, bequest, donation, or similar transfer of property or money be made to the Consortium, the Governing Body shall receive the property on behalf of the Consortium and distribute it to the Fiscal Agents. This ability to receive and distribute funds made out to the Consortium generally instead of a particular Fiscal Agent is an exception to the Fiscal Agents' Fiscal Authority as explained in Article IV(C)(2).

Subject to the above provisions, the Governing Body shall be the principal governance body of the Consortium and shall conduct meetings in accordance with the provisions of the Open Meetings Act.

C. <u>Fiscal Agents</u>. Bloomfield Hills School District, Troy School District, and Huron Valley Schools shall serve as the Consortium's Fiscal Agents. Each Fiscal Agent's board of education shall adopt a resolution appointing the district's Superintendent or his/her designee to serve as the district's representative for all purposes under this Agreement relative to the duties and responsibilities of the Fiscal Agents as set forth herein. Bloomfield Hills School District

shall serve as the Fiscal Agent for the Consortium's Okma Campus; Troy School District shall serve as the Fiscal Agent for the Consortium's Troy Campus; and Huron Valley Schools shall serve as the Fiscal Agent for the Consortium's West Campus.

- 1. <u>General Responsibilities.</u> The Fiscal Agents shall be responsible for the fiscal, legal and day-to-day administrative affairs of the Consortium at their respective Campuses and perform all such responsibilities as required of them by applicable law, including the usual responsibilities accorded a consortium fiscal agent under applicable law.
- 2. <u>Fiscal Authority.</u> The Fiscal Agents' fiscal duties and responsibilities are set forth elsewhere in this Agreement, particularly Article IV (Budget and Finance), and are generally stated here to include, but are not limited to, the following:
 - a. Sole responsibility to collect and disburse funds;
 - b. Participation in the identification and securing of grant moneys, grant flow through moneys, and other funds, as may be available for a Campus, on behalf of the Consortium;
 - c. Campus budget direction and ongoing oversight of each Campus's finances;
 - d. Maintenance of proper records of each Campus's accounts, financial transactions and similar activities, and having an annual audit for the Consortium as part of the Fiscal Agent's audit;
 - e. Ensuring that each Campus's funds generated, received and expended are properly and separately accounted for in accordance with applicable law, state accounting requirements, and adopted policies and accounting procedures;
 - f. Calculating each Campus's annual operating Costs, capital outlay costs and start-up costs, shortfall obligations, Per Pupil Charges, and crediting Participants for their contributions to the operating Costs. Each Participating District will be provided the tuition calculation formula and their tuition rate by December 10th of each year; and
 - g. Paying all lawful bills of the Campus and Cooperative Program from appropriate funds.

- 3. <u>Legal and Contracting Authority.</u> The Fiscal Agents may enter into contracts for goods and services for Campus purposes within budget amounts.
- 4. A Fiscal Agent shall not incur debt obligations on behalf of the Consortium, including but not limited to, bonds, notes, installment purchase agreements, or leases for its Campus without first obtaining written approval from the Participating Districts at its Campus. The Consortium shall not assume the liability or financial responsibility for unauthorized debt obligations incurred by a Fiscal Agent.
- D. No Corporate Authority; Reliance on Fiscal Agent. This Agreement and the Consortium provide only for arrangements and obligations among the Participants (including the Fiscal Agents) to each other. Unless so reorganized the Consortium is not a corporate entity and may not contract in its own name. Neither the Governing Body, the Fiscal Agents, the JAC, nor any Participant has authority to act as agent for or to enter into any contract that would bind the Consortium or any Participant to a third party. Instead, the Governing Body and Fiscal Agents may act on such matters with reference to the Consortium and its Participants, and the Participants shall pay the costs owed to their respective Fiscal Agent under Article V(1)(F) and Article V(1)(I)
- E. <u>Joint Advisory Committee.</u> Each Participating District will designate an administrative representative to serve on the Joint Advisory Committee ("JAC"). The JAC will act as an advisory committee to the Governing Body and the Fiscal Agents.
- F. <u>Enrollment</u>. Students attending the Academy shall be considered enrolled in their resident school district high school. Student enrollment rules and procedures at each Campus will be determined by the Fiscal Agent for that Campus.
 - 1. The Academy shall follow the enrollment process set forth in this Agreement. Interested students will be counseled by both the school district of residence and the Academy staff on the appropriateness of the Cooperative Program and the Campus requested. Enrollment priority may be granted to a sibling of a pupil enrolled in the Cooperative Program. The school district of residence shall retain discretion to determine whether a student is eligible to attend the Academy or continue in enrollment. Students may transfer to the Academy after the beginning of the school year in accordance with policies established by the Governing Body or Fiscal Agent.
 - a. The Academy will provide each Participating District with a list of their applicants and Campuses requested by the applicants for the subsequent school year by the first Monday of February.
 - b. Districts that are candidates for membership will be allocated shares in order of the date and time of application. If spaces remain after

Participating and candidate Districts' requests have been met, they will be offered to non-Participating Districts.

- 2. The Academy and Participating Districts will abide by the enrollment of upper grade students as specified below:
- a. The Academy will determine the availability of upper grade vacancies depending on class section and teacher availability.
- b. A designated vacancy will first be made available to the Participating District of an upper grade applicant provided that Participating District has unfilled spaces in the specified grade. In the case of more than one upper grade candidate, the candidates will be ordered by date of application receipt, unless their district maintains an active wait list of prior applicants, in which case the Participating District's active wait list will determine the applicant order.
- c. Given the sequential nature of the Academy's curriculum, upper grade candidates shall not be presumed eligible. The Academy will evaluate the applicant's suitability and inform the applicant's Participating District of its determination. The Participating District shall make the final determination.
- d. A prior application for grade nine student enrollment does not constitute an application for upper grade enrollment. Applicants for grades 10, 11, or 12 must submit a designated application for the appropriate grade level. Participating Districts utilizing wait lists to order upper grade applicants can use these lists when offering upper grade spaces. If a student accepts the offer, they will need to complete an upper grade application at that time. Applicants will be accepted on or after the first day of school one year prior to the intended school year of enrollment.
- e. Participating Districts can at their discretion adopt a policy which permits upper grade enrollment only in specified circumstances, such circumstances can include but are not limited to: 1) prior enrollment in an International Baccalaureate program; 2) current enrollment in the Academy but moving into another Participating District; 3) moving to the United States from outside the country per international student status.
- f. If a student changes his/her district of residence, and the student's new district of residence is serviced by another Campus, his/her enrollment will not automatically transfer from one Campus to another. Such a student will be required to submit an application to the Campus or Campuses for which his/her new resident district holds shares, if any. A student required to re-apply to a

Campus under this subsection shall not be given enrollment priority over other students of the same resident district applying to that designated Campus.

The Governing Body is granted authority pursuant to this Agreement to develop guidelines for authorizing enrollment outside of the process in special circumstances.

G. <u>Graduation Credit/Testing/Records/Discipline</u>.

- 1. Graduation Credit All credits earned at the Academy will be applied toward graduation requirements at the student's Participating District. The student will be eligible to receive a high school of residence/International Academy diploma upon accomplishing the International Academy requirements. All grades earned at the Academy will be reported promptly to the Participating District for its education records. Any grade change request shall be in accordance with the provisions of the School Code, as amended, if applicable, and to the extent not inconsistent with the School Code provisions, the policies of the Fiscal Agents. If a student leaves the Academy and transfers to another high school in the student's District, credits earned at the Academy will be applied toward graduation at that high school. A student remaining at the Academy for the completion of the program will be eligible to receive a high school diploma from the Academy.
- 2. <u>Testing</u> The Academy shall administer mandated testing for enrolled students as may be required by the State, or other nationally recognized proficiency testing instruments agreed upon by the Fiscal Agents for the assessment of pupil performance. The students' test scores may be included, at the discretion of the Participating District, in the Participating District's calculation of aggregate test scores in accordance with applicable provisions of the Revised School Code and Michigan Department of Education promulgated rules.
- 3. Discipline Each campus shall have a Student Code of Conduct. Each Fiscal Agent shall have the authority to determine its Student Code of Conduct, policies, rules and regulations. All students enrolled in the Cooperative Program pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement are subject to the Fiscal Agent's Student Code of Conduct, policies, rules and regulations during the time they are in attendance at the Academy at any Campus. The building principal (or other designated administrator) of the Academy's Campus shall have the authority to discipline any students in attendance at the Academy in accordance with applicable law and the published and distributed policies pertaining to student rights and responsibilities in the Academy. The Fiscal Agent has the authority to preclude a student from further attendance at its campus. If a Fiscal Agent decides to preclude a student from its campus, that student's district of residence shall determine the admittance, suspension, or expulsion process for that student regarding the district of residence.
- 4. <u>Records</u> The Fiscal Agents shall be responsible for maintaining appropriate records of student attendance, behavior, progress, grades and achievement as may be required by law or by action of the Fiscal Agents. Student records shall be

maintained on a basis that is comparable to the record keeping in the Participating Districts for pupils enrolled in regular secondary programming. Participating Districts shall have complete access to all student records of its students maintained by the Fiscal Agents.

Section 2. Consortium Shares.

A Participating District's interest in the Academy shall be represented by shares. Each share shall have a Campus designation. A Participating District may hold shares in more than one Campus. The number of shares and Campus designation available to the Participating Districts collectively shall be determined by a consensus of the Fiscal Agents and set forth in Appendix C. Each share shall entitle its holder to enroll a number of students in the Cooperative Program, which number shall be five students per share for the 2019/2020 school year and shall be fixed by the Fiscal Agents in advance of each school year thereafter based on available capacity, provided that the number of students which a Participating District is entitled to enroll per share may not be decreased to less than four students per academic year without the written consent of that Participating District's board of education. The number of shares elected to be held by each Participating District for the initial year of operation shall be designated in writing by each Participating District from among the shares available. Any increases in shares which may be sought by Participating Districts for later school years shall be granted by the Participating Districts' Superintendents based on the availability of student seats as determined by the Fiscal Agents. The number of shares held by a Participating District shall also determine each district's pro rata distribution upon dissolution of the Consortium.

Section 3. Transfer of Shares.

A Participating District may, following the close of the initial school year, transfer some or all of its shares in the Academy to another public school district and thereby convey to the transferee district all rights and obligations attendant to the transferred share(s), thereby relieving the transferor district from such rights and obligations. However, such share(s) must be first made available to Participating Districts by providing written notice to the Fiscal Agents of their intention to transfer said share(s). In the event that none of the Participating Districts elect to acquire the offered share(s) within 45 days of notice being provided to the Fiscal Agents, the Participating District may transfer the shares to first, an eligible District that has unilaterally withdrawn from Consortium membership and second, to a non-participating, public school district, subject to the transferee district agreeing in writing to be bound by the provisions of this Agreement, whereupon said transferee shall become a Participating District.

V. FINANCIAL PROVISIONS

Section 1.

- A. <u>Fiscal Year.</u> The Fiscal Year of the Cooperative Program shall be from July 1 through June 30 of each school year.
- B. Accounting/Budgets/Audits. Each Fiscal Agent shall be responsible for the proper budgeting and accounting for its Campus of funds generated, received and expended

in accordance with applicable law, state accounting requirements, and this Agreement. Each Campus's funds shall be audited as part of the Fiscal Agents' regular audit. Funds of each Campus will be handled according to standard accounting procedures and deposited with depositories as determined by the Fiscal Agents.

The Okma Campus Fiscal Agent shall prepare a budget no later than March 31 preceding each fiscal year and provide the prepared budget to each Participating District which sends pupils to its Campus. The budget provided to each Participating District shall include the percentage of the foundation allowance to be charged for the following year. Each Participating District shall have until June 30th to approve, disapprove or abstain regarding the budget for the ensuing fiscal year by Resolution of its board of education and provide notice of its action to the Governing Body and appropriate Fiscal Agent. A Participating District that disapproves a budget for the ensuing fiscal year shall be deemed to have unilaterally withdrawn from its participation in the Consortium effective at the end of the current Consortium fiscal year, and its rights and obligations shall be governed by the "Unilateral Withdrawal" provisions of Article III, Section C.3. of this Agreement . Budget revisions made during the year will be shared with participating districts.

- C. For purposes of determining the amount of the Per Pupil Charge to be charged for enrolled students, allowable operating costs under this Agreement shall not include:
 - 1. the financial responsibility of the Lessor to maintain the physical integrity of the building including its mechanical, electrical, and structural upkeep and related capital improvement projects; and
 - 2. additional costs attributable to the educational needs of certified special education students. The additional costs attributable to the educational needs of the certified special education students agreed to by the district of residence shall be borne by the district of residence.
- D. <u>Exclusion for Special Education or Similar Costs.</u> For purposes of this Agreement, additional costs attributable to the educational needs of certified special education students, or similar costs for any other federal or state legally prescribed services for distinct class of students, are excluded from costs. Additional costs attributable to the educational needs of certified special education student (or similar costs for any other legally prescribed services for distinct class of students) shall be agreed to by the Participant district sending such certified or classified student and shall be paid by the sending Participant district.
- E. Per Pupil Charge. Participating Districts shall pay a per pupil charge (the "Per Pupil Charge") for each resident student which it permits to be enrolled in the Academy at a rate or amount to be set by the Fiscal Agent in connection with annually adopting the operating budget. The Per Pupil Charge shall not exceed the average foundation allowance of all the Participating Districts at a particular Campus, plus an amount not to exceed an additional ten percent of that average without approval by a majority vote of the Superintendents of the Participating Districts for the Campus. For hold harmless sending districts, the foundation

allowance used in a calculation will not be below the maximum foundation. Each Participating District will be provided the tuition calculation formula and their tuition rate by December 10^{th} of each year.

- F. <u>Contribution Offsets Against Per Pupil Charge</u>. For each fiscal year and to the extent approved by the Fiscal Agents, each Participant's contributions of staff, services, supplies or capital equipment (or an apportioned amount thereof to the extent such resources are used jointly for Campus and Participant purposes) will be credited against its Per Pupil Charge. In the event such credits are in excess of the Per Pupil Charge payable by that Participant, the Fiscal Agent shall pay the amount of such excess to that Participant at the time and in the proportion that the Per Pupil Charge is due. For the purpose of calculating employee costs, net of UAAL costs that are funded by the State and any other pass through funding, the Participant will be credited for the full cost of both salary and benefits. For the purpose of calculating contributions for supplies or capital equipment, the Participant will be credited for the actual cost of the contribution. The Fiscal Agents shall be responsible for developing guidelines and the methodology to enable them to calculate costs, apportionments and credits against Per Pupil Charges. All costs reimbursed to a Participant are subject to applicable law, including any limitations in the State School Aid Act
- G. State Aid and General Grants. The Fiscal Agents, on behalf of, and for the benefit of, the Consortium, with such reasonable support from the Participants as the Fiscal Agents may request, may apply for and receive any state educational funds available to the Cooperative Program or any individual Campus and its students under the State School Aid Act, except for special education funds, similar type funds, or foundation allowances, reserved by the Participants in accordance with their rights and responsibilities under this Agreement. The Fiscal Agents may also solicit and receive grants or donations consistent with the mission of the Cooperative Program, or contract with third party recipients of such grants and donations for the provision of education programs to students from Participants. Receipt of such state educational funds, grants, or donations shall be approved by the Fiscal Agents, including determination whether such state educational funds or grants, or donations shall be deemed revenues to be offset against costs, or for some other Cooperative Program purpose.
- H. Excess Costs. No costs of the Consortium may be charged to a Participant (other than the Fiscal Agents) in excess of its Per Pupil Charge, except in accordance with this Section. If at any time a Fiscal Agent seeks to assess excess costs against Participants, the Fiscal Agent must first submit to the Board of Education of each Participant at its Campus, the Campus budget or revised budget indicating the amount of such excess costs and the proposed sharing among Participants of such excess costs. For a Participant to be liable for any excess costs, its Board of Education shall have adopted a resolution expressly acknowledging receipt of the Campus budget or revised budget showing such excess costs, and approving that Participant's payment of a stated proportion or amount of such excess costs. In the event of excess costs which have not been allocated to and approved by Participants in accordance with this Section, such excess costs shall be the sole obligation of the Fiscal Agents.
- I. <u>Surplus Fund; Annual Surplus or Deficits.</u> For the OKMA Campus, accounted for in a separate fund by the fiscal agent, any surplus or deficit in a Program budget at

fiscal year-end shall be used as determined by that Program's Fiscal Agent in accordance with all applicable laws, rules, regulations, and policies.

VI. PERSONNEL

Section 1. Teaching Staff.

- A. The Academy will select its teaching staff from qualified teacher applicants. Application to the Academy will be voluntary and subject to the release from the applicant's employing school district. The Academy will attempt to staff with teachers from the Participating Districts in approximate relationship to each Participating District's pupil count. If a position which needs to be staffed cannot be filled in this manner, the Academy will request that the Participating District with the then lowest ratio of assigned staff to the Participating District's Consortium shares hire a qualified candidate to be assigned to the Academy. This process will be followed whenever the need to fill an Academy staff position cannot be accomplished from existing staff of a Participating District while still keeping the Academy staff balanced according to the approximate relationship of each Participating District's pupil count to the Academy's total teaching staff. The Fiscal Agents at each campus are authorized to administer this provision and to make such adjustments as are necessary to staff the Academy.
- B. At the conclusion of each school year, teachers assigned to the Academy will, upon written request, be permitted to return to their home district in accordance with the letters of agreement referred to herein. The Academy's administrator, in conjunction with the Fiscal Agents, may also return a teacher to that teacher's home district at the conclusion of a school year, subject to whatever limitations may apply by operation of the Participating District's collective bargaining agreement applicable to the teacher. If a limitation exists under a Participating District's collective bargaining agreement which temporarily prevents the return of a teacher from the Academy to a home district, the Participating District shall make every effort to accommodate that teacher's return to the home district as soon as possible.
- C. Teachers assigned to the Academy will at all times remain exclusively employees of their home district. They will also remain members of their Participating District bargaining unit. As home district employees, they will be assigned by their home district to perform services for the Academy at the Academy site. As the only employment relationship of each Academy teacher is with his/her home participating district, the responsibility for all payment of wages and other benefits and compensation to each teacher, including the responsibility for satisfaction of any legal obligation to maintain insurance or other contributions required by law, including, but not limited to, insurance required under the Worker's Disability Compensation Act, insurance or reimbursement required under the Michigan Employment Security Act, and retirement contributions mandated pursuant to the provisions of the Michigan Public School Employees Retirement Act, shall remain that of each teacher's home district. Any tenure and other employment rights will be exclusively between each teacher and his/her home district. However, because of the nature of the assignment of each teacher to the Academy, the right to evaluate, manage, supervise, and otherwise regulate and control the activities and performance of each teacher and the manner in which the work of each teacher is performed will be delegated by each home district to the Fiscal Agents and Academy administrator.

D. The responsibility for formation, regulation, modification, and/or termination of all contractual relationships, whether through individual employment agreement(s) or collective bargaining agreement(s), in any way pertaining to a teacher assigned by a home district to the Academy remains with the home district. Any collective bargaining contract provisions between a home district and the association representing home district teachers will be applicable to a home district teacher assigned to the Academy except where specific changes have been negotiated between the home district and the home district bargaining unit association and agreed upon in letters of agreement between the affected parties. These letters of agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit B, will address differences in wages, hours, and working conditions inherent in the operation of the Academy program. Failure to reach a letter of agreement between the home district and the association shall not preclude the enrollment of the home district's students in the Academy. A home district is not required, as a condition to entering into this Agreement or enrolling its students in the Academy, to approve a letter of agreement. If a home district and/or its bargaining unit does not approve the negotiated letter of understanding in place for the Academy with such terms and conditions as outlined herein, it shall not assign teaching staff to the Academy pursuant to Section 1 herein.

Section 2. Academy Principal. Assistant Principal(s) and Employees other than Certified Teaching Personnel.

The Academy Principal shall be employed by one of the Fiscal Agents, and shall be responsible for and be the Academy Principal for all Consortium Campuses. The Academy Principal will be evaluated by the Fiscal Agent which employs the Principal. The Fiscal Agent employer may seek evaluation input from the other Fiscal Agents. The Principal shall provide leadership and direction to the Cooperative Program to be operated pursuant to this Agreement, and shall fulfill such duties as set forth in a job description approved by the Fiscal Agent which employs the Academy Principal. Such job description may be modified at the discretion of the Fiscal Agent which employs the Academy Principal, with input from the other Fiscal Agents.

Assistant Principals shall be employed by the Fiscal Agent of the Campus to which they are assigned. The Assistant Principal(s) will report to the Fiscal Agent employer and will receive assignments and direction from the Academy Principal. The Fiscal Agent employer of the Assistant Principal(s) will evaluate the Assistant Principal. The Fiscal Agent employer may seek evaluation input from the Academy Principal. The Assistant Principal(s) shall fulfill such duties as set forth in a job description approved by the Fiscal Agent employer.

Employees other than certified teaching personnel shall be employed by the Fiscal Agent of the Campus site to which they are assigned. The terms and conditions of their employment are subject to the policies, procedures and applicable labor contracts of the Fiscal Agent.

VII. LIABILITIES

Section 1. Insurance.

- A. Each Participating District will be solely and entirely responsible for acts or omissions attributable to it or its agents, employees, or subcontractors during the performance of this Agreement and agrees, to the extent permitted by law, to indemnify the Consortium, and all other parties to this Agreement from any claims and/or judgments arising from such acts or omissions.
- B. Each Participating District and the Fiscal Agent District agree to maintain such insurance as will fully protect itself, its agents, employees, and subcontractors from any and all claims under Workers' Compensation Act or employer's liability laws and from any and all other claims of whatsoever kind or nature for damage to property or for personal injury, including death, which may arise from programming carried out under the terms of this Agreement. Each Participating District and the Fiscal Agent District shall annually provide the Consortium with certificates of insurance evidencing the required insurance coverages.
- C. The Fiscal Agent for each Campus, on behalf of the Academy, shall maintain insurance naming the Academy as insured parties protecting against all liability or loss, and against all claims or actions based upon or arising out of damage or injury (including death) to persons or property caused by or sustained in connection with the performance of programming under this Agreement or by conditions created thereby, or based upon any violation of any constitutional provision, statute, ordinance, code, or regulation and the defense of any such claims or actions. In the event of uninsured liabilities of the nature described in this paragraph, the Participating District and/or Fiscal Agent District (as may be applicable) shall have sole responsibility for acts or omissions attributable to it, its employees, agents, or subcontractors and shall indemnify all other parties to this Agreement from claims and/or judgments resulting from such acts or omissions, including reasonable costs of defense.
- D. Issues of liability, both legal and financial, shall be specific to the Campus a Participating District's students are attending. Liability will not extend beyond a particular Campus site.

VIII. NON-DISCRIMINATION

Section 1. Equal Employment Opportunity.

All parties agree that they will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment (with respect to hire, tenure, terms, conditions, or privileges of employment, or a matter directly or indirectly related to employment) because of race, color, age, sex, religion, national origin, height, weight, marital status, or handicap. The parties further agree that they will not discriminate against any student or participant because of race, color, sex, religion, national origin, or handicap, in the performance of programs and services under this Agreement.

Section 2. Non-Discrimination Clause.

Any contract to which the Consortium, any Participating District or the Fiscal Agent is a party, in connection with the performance of this Agreement, shall contain the non-discrimination covenant which is required to be included in such contracts, according to the laws of the State of Michigan.

IX. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

Section 1. Matters to be Submitted to Arbitration.

All disputes and controversies of every kind and nature between the parties to this Agreement arising out of or in connection with the performance of this Agreement or as to the existence, construction, validity, interpretation or meaning, performance, non-performance, enforcement, operation, breach, continuance, or termination/dissolution thereof, shall be submitted to arbitration pursuant to the procedure set forth in this Article if said disputes and controversies cannot be resolved through negotiation with the Fiscal Agent.

Section 2. Procedure.

- A. Any party may demand such arbitration in writing within thirty (30) days after the controversy arises, which demand shall include the name of the arbitrator nominated by the party demanding arbitration, together with a written statement of the matter in controversy.
- B. Within ten (10) days after receipt of such demand, the other parties shall either consent to the appointment of the arbitrator nominated by the party demanding arbitration, or in default of such naming, the dispute shall be referred to the American Arbitration Association for the selection of the arbitrator.
- C. The arbitration costs and expenses of each party shall be borne by that party. The fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be shared equally by the parties to the arbitration dispute.
- D. The arbitration hearing shall be held within Oakland County, Michigan, upon at least thirty (30) days' advance notice to the parties.
- E. The Commercial Arbitration Rules and procedures of the American Arbitration Association shall be utilized in the arbitration hearing to the extent that these are not inconsistent with Michigan law (MCL 600.5001) and court rule (MCR 3.602).
- F. The arbitration hearing shall be concluded within ninety (90) days unless otherwise ordered by the Arbitrator, and the award on the hearing shall be made within ninety (90) days after the close of the submission of evidence.

Section 3. Effect of Arbitration Award.

- A. An award rendered by an arbitrator appointed under and pursuant to this Agreement shall be final and binding on all parties to the proceeding, and judgment on the award shall be enforceable and rendered in the Circuit Court for the 6th Judicial Circuit of Michigan (Oakland County).
- B. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to give the arbitrator any authority, power, or right to alter, change, amend, modify, add to, or subtract from any of the provisions of this Agreement.

Section 4. Arbitration as Bar to Suit.

- A. The parties stipulate that the provisions of this Agreement shall be a complete defense to any suit, action, or proceeding instituted in any federal, state, or local court or before any administrative tribunal with respect to any controversy or dispute arising between or among them under this Agreement and which is arbitrable as set forth in this Agreement.
- B. The arbitration provisions of this Agreement shall, with respect to such controversy or dispute arising hereunder, survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.
- C. With respect to any dispute or controversy that is made subject to arbitration under the terms of this Agreement, no suit at law or in equity based on such dispute or controversy shall be instituted by any party, except to enforce the award of the arbitrator.

X. MISCELLANEOUS

Section 1. Successor and Assigns.

Except as provided in Article III, Section 9, no Participating District or Fiscal Agent District shall assign this Agreement or any rights or obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of each other signatory Participating District to this Agreement. Such attempt at assignment without such prior written consent shall be void and of no force or effect. This Agreement shall insure to the benefit and shall be binding upon the successors and permitted assigns of the Participating and the Fiscal Agent Districts.

Section 2. Governing Law.

This Agreement shall be construed, performed, and enforced in accordance with, and governed by, the laws of the State of Michigan.

Section 3. Severability.

In the event that any part of this Agreement is declared by any court or other judicial or administrative body to be null, void, or unenforceable, such invalidity shall not affect any other

provision of this Agreement that can be given effect without the invalid provision, and to this end, the provisions hereof are severable.

Section 4. Notices.

A. All notices, requests, demands, or other communications under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given (i) on the date of service if served personally on the party to whom the notice is given at its address listed in this paragraph, or (ii) on the day after delivery to an overnight courier or the express mail service maintained by the United States Postal Service to the parties as follows:

[UPDATE AS NECESSARY]

B. Any party may change its address for the purpose of this paragraph by giving the Consortium notice of its new address in the manner set forth above.

Section 5. Amendment; Waivers.

This Agreement may be amended or modified, and any of the terms, covenants, representations, warranties, or conditions hereof may be waived, only by a written instrument executed by a majority of the Participating Districts. Any waiver by any party of any condition, or of the breach of any provision, term, covenant, representation, or warranty contained in this Agreement shall not be deemed nor construed as a continuing waiver of any such condition, or breach of any other provision, term, covenant, representation, or warranty of this Agreement.

Section 6. Entire Agreement.

This Agreement contains the entire understanding among the Participating Districts and Fiscal Agents with respect to the programs and services contemplated herein and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements and understandings, oral or written, with regards to such programs. All schedules hereto and any policies, documents and instruments delivered pursuant to any provision hereof are expressly made a part of this Agreement.

Section 7. Further Matters.

The Participating Districts agree to perform such additional acts and execute such additional documents as are reasonably necessary to carry out this Agreement.

Section 8. Paragraph Headings.

The paragraph headings in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not effect the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.

Section 9. Authorization.

This Agreement has been duly authorized, executed, and delivered by the parties hereto and constitutes a legal, valid, and binding obligation of such parties, enforceable in accordance with its terms. Each individual's signature hereto represents and warrants that the signatory is duly authorized to execute this Agreement on behalf of the signatory's Participating District.

Section 10. Counterparts.

This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned K-12 School Districts of the State of Michigan have caused this Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized officers and representatives on the date hereof, as of which date this Agreement shall come into full force and effect.

DATED:	
WITNESSED:	AVONDALE SCHOOL DISTRICT
	By:
	By: Its Superintendent
	BERKLEY SCHOOL DISTRICT
	By:
	By: Its Superintendent
	BIRMINGHAM SCHOOL DISTRICT
	By: Its Superintendent
	Its Superintendent
	BLOOMFIELD HILLS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
	By:
	Its Superintendent
	CLAWSON PUBLIC SCHOOLS
	By:
	Its Superintendent
	HURON VALLEY SCHOOL DISTRICT
	By:
	Its Superintendent
	LAKE ORION COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
	By:
	By: Its Superintendent
	ROCHESTER COMMUNITY SCHOOLS
	By:
	Its Superintendent
	SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF ROYAL OAK
	By:
	Its Superintendent
	SOUTH LYON COMMUNITY SCHOOLS
	By:
	Its Superintendent

TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT
By:
Its Superintendent
WATERFORD SCHOOL DISTRICT
By:
Its Superintendent
WEST BLOOMFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT
By:
Its Superintendent

APPENDIX A

PARTICIPATING DISTRICTS

[UPDATE MEMBER DISTRICTS]

APPENDIX B

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

General

The Consortium and the Academies shall operate in accordance with the Uniform Budgeting and Accounting Act, being Public Act No. 2 of 1968, the State School Aid Act and all other state laws pertaining to the financial operation of the Academies.

Billing and Payment Schedule

The billing and payment schedule for the Per Pupil Charge, costs and assessment shall be in accordance with Article IV, Section 3 and Article V of the Agreement.

APPENDIX C

LEVELS OF PARTICIPATION*

Full Member Participating District

- Students attend per shares owned
- May request temporary discontinued status
- May share in assets, in event of dissolution
- First choice to fill additional 9th grade spaces, if available
- May fill additional upper class spaces, if available
- First choice to purchase additional shares, if available
- Pays full rate for every attending student

Temporary Discontinued Participating District

- Upper class students may attend, per shares owned
- 2nd choice to fill 9th grade spaces, if available; 2nd choice to purchase additional shares (in order by date of written request for temporary status)
- May share assets, in event of dissolution
- Pays full rate for every upper-class attending student
- May pay 50% of 9th grade shares, unless they are filled by other districts
- May reclaim full shares by requesting in writing by January 15th

First Right of Refusal non-Participating District (until youngest cohort graduates)

- Upper-class students may attend per shares owned
- Status is valid only until current youngest cohort graduates
- 3rd choice to fill additional 9th grade spaces, if available (would not count as cohort group)
- 3rd choice to purchase additional shares, if available
- Pays full rate for every upper-class attending student
- May pay 50% of 9th grade shares, unless they are filled by other districts

Unilateral Withdrawal Non-member

- Upper-class students may attend, per shares owned
- 4th choice to fill additional 9th grade spaces, if available (would not count as cohort group)
- Pays full rate for every upper-class attending student
- Forgoes right to purchase additional shares

Applicant – IA has written letter of application from appropriate district personnel on file

- 5th choice to fill additional 9th grade spaces, if available
- 4th choice to purchase shares, in order of received date on letter of application
- Pays full rate for every attending student

Guest

- 6th choice to fill additional 9th grade spaces, if available
- Pays full rate for every attending student

*This Appendix is a general summary of the features of membership participation. Specific terms, conditions and notice requirements are set forth in the Agreement. This Appendix is intended to be used only as a general description and not determinative of the legal rights and obligations under the Agreement.

Overview of Types of Participation

	Students, per shares owned	One year waiver	Assets	Additional 9 th grade spaces	Additional upper class spaces	Additional shares
Full member participant	X	X	X	1st	X	1st
Temporary Discontinue	X-1			2 nd		2 nd
1 st Right of Refusal	X-1, 2					3rd
Alumni	X-2			3rd		
Applicant				4 th		4 th
Guest				5 th		

- 1. Must pay 50% of 9th grade shares, unless they are filled by other districts
- 2. Other until current youngest cohort graduates

<u>Participating District</u> <u>Shares</u> <u>Campus</u>

APPENDIX D

<u>Campus</u>	Fiscal Agent
IA Bloomfield Hills Campus	Bloomfield Hills Public Schools
IA West	Huron Valley School District
IA East	Troy School District

_____SCHOOL DISTRICT COUNTY OF _____ STATE OF MICHIGAN

RESOLUTION REGARDING INTERNATIONAL ACADEMY AGREEMENT

A regular meeting of the Board of Education (the "Board") of "District") was held on, 2020, at p.m.	(the
The meeting was called to order by	
Present:	
Absent:	
The following preamble and resolution were offered by and supported by Member:	Member

WHEREAS, the District is a Participating District in the International Academy ("IA") and is a party to the Consortium Agreement that sets forth the terms and conditions by which the IA is governed and operates; and

WHEREAS, at the October 2, 2019 meeting of the IA's Joint Steering Committee ("JSC"), the JSC adopted a Resolution approving an amendment to the governance structure of the IA as set forth in the Consortium Agreement; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the process set forth in the Consortium Agreement, the boards of a majority of the Participating Districts have adopted resolutions ratifying and approving the amended governance structure adopted by the JSC; and

WHEREAS, the Consortium Agreement provides in Section X, Paragraph 5 that it may be amended or modified only by a written instrument executed by a majority of the Participating; and

WHEREAS, the JSC has circulated a proposed and Amended International Academy Consortium Agreement, the terms of which are set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto, for consideration and approval by the boards of the Participating Districts; and

WHEREAS, upon thorough and thoughtful consideration of the terms of the proposed Amended Consortium Agreement, the Board deems it to be in the best interests of the District to approve the same and to authorize the District's Superintendent to execute the same on the District's behalf;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

1. The Board hereby approves the property of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A an execute the same on the District's behalf.	d authorizes the District's Superintendent to
2. All other resolutions and parts of provisions of this resolution are hereby rescinded	Fresolutions insofar as they conflict with the d.
	, Secretary Board of Education School District
by the Board of Education of	true and complete copy of a resolution adopted, School District, County of, State of, 2020, and that the meeting was conducted resuant to and in full compliance with the Open 276, and that minutes of said meeting were kept ared by said Act.
	Board of Education School District

COUNTY OF STATE OF MICHIGAN

RESOLUTION REGARDING INTERNATIONAL ACADEMY

A regular meeting of the Board of Education (the "Board") of "District") was held on, 2020, at p.m.	(the
The meeting was called to order by	
Present:	-
Absent:	-
The following preamble and resolution were offered by and supported by Member:	Member

WHEREAS, the District is a Participating District in the International Academy ("IA") and is a party to the Consortium Agreement that sets forth the terms and conditions by which the IA is governed and operates; and

WHEREAS, at the October 2, 2019 meeting of the IA's Joint Steering Committee ("JSC"), the JSC adopted a Resolution approving an amendment to the governance structure of the IA as set forth in the Consortium Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the boards of a majority of the Participating Districts have adopted resolutions ratifying and approving the amended governance structure adopted by the JSC; and

WHEREAS, the amended governance structure provides that the IA Consortium shall be governed by a five-member body consisting of the duly appointed representatives of its three Fiscal Agents and two additional at-large members elected by majority vote of all Participating Districts; and

WHEREAS, with respect to the initial election of the two at-large members, who are to serve two-year terms, the Fiscal Agent representatives shall create a ballot with the names of the Superintendents (or their designees) of all Participating Districts that wish to have representation on the Governing Body and disseminate the ballot to the Participating Districts' boards for vote; and

WHEREAS, placement on the ballot shall require a resolution of a Participating District's board designating the district's Superintendent (or his/her designee) as that district's proposed representative as an at-large member of the Governing Body, with the election to take place as soon as practicable after the effective date of the amendment to the governing structure of the IA; and

WHEREAS, the only two Participating Districts whose boards have adopted a resolution designating their district's Superintendent (or his/her designee) as that district's proposed representative as an at-large member of the Governing Body are Rochester Community Schools (Superintendent Dr. Robert Shaner) and Birmingham Public Schools (Superintendent Mark Dziatczak); and

WHEREAS, the Board has been presented with a ballot created by the Fiscal Agent representatives with the names of Rochester Community Schools Superintendent Dr. Robert Shaner (or his designee) and Birmingham Public Schools Superintendent Mark Dziatczak (or his designee) for vote to serve as the two at-large members of the Governing Body for two-year terms; and

WHEREAS, the Board deems it to be in the best interests of the District to cast its vote for the above mentioned Superintendents (or their designees) to serve as the two at-large members of the Governing Body;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

1.	The Boar	rd hereby ca	asts its vote	to have	Rochester Cor	nmunity	Schools
Superintendent I	Or. Robert	Shaner (or	his design	nee) and	Birmingham	Public	Schools
Superintendent M	Iark Dziatcz	ak (or his de	esignee) serv	e as the t	wo at-large me	embers of	f the IA
Governing Body.							

	, Secretary
	Board of Education
	School District
by the Board of Education of Michigan, at a regular meeting held on and public notice of the meeting was given	es a true and complete copy of a resolution adopte School District, County of, State of, 2020, and that the meeting was conducted pursuant to and in full compliance with the Ope of 1976, and that minutes of said meeting were key equired by said Act.
	Board of Education

School District

ACTION

WATERFORD SCHOOL DISTRICT Board of Education 501 N Cass Lake Road Waterford, Michigan 48328

ITEM NO.: 11.a.(1) NEW BUSINESS

Superintendent's Recommendation 101-19-20

TOPIC: Administrative Contract Changes and Appointments

It is recommended that the Board of Education approve the following administrative appointment for the 2020-2021 school year:

Appointments/Changes:

File, Susan - Director Human Resources 100% Administrator Contract

Effective: July 1, 2020

Replacing: Janet McLeod

Resource Person(s): <u>Janet McLeod, Director, Human Resources</u>

Date of Board of Education Meeting: <u>June 18, 2020</u>

ACTION

WATERFORD SCHOOL DISTRICT Board of Education 501 N. Cass Lake Road Waterford, Michigan 48328

ITEM NO.: 11.a.(2) NEW BUSINESS

Superintendent's Recommendation 102-19-20

TOPIC: Resolution: International Academy Governance

It is recommended that the Board of Education approve the attached resolution casting a vote to have Rochester Community Schools Superintendent, Dr. Robert Shaner (or his designee) and Birmingham public Schools Superintendent Mark Dziatczak (or his designee) serve as the two at-large members of the IA Governing Body.

Resource Person: Scott A. Lindberg, Superintendent of Schools

Date of Board of Education Meeting: June 18, 2020

WATERFORD SCHOOL DISTRICT COUNTY OF OAKLAND STATE OF MICHIGAN

RESOLUTION REGARDING INTERNATIONAL ACADEMY

The meeting was called to order by Michael Ristich, Ph.D., President.

A regular meeting of the Board of Education (the "Board") of Waterford School District (the "District") was held on June 18, 2020, at 6:30 p.m.

Presei	nt:							
Abser	nt:							
The	following	preamble	and	resolution	were	offered	by	Membe
	a	nd supported	by Mei	mber		:	_	

WHEREAS, the District is a Participating District in the International Academy ("IA") and is a party to the Consortium Agreement that sets forth the terms and conditions by which the IA is governed and operates; and

WHEREAS, at the October 2, 2019 meeting of the IA's Joint Steering Committee ("JSC"), the JSC adopted a Resolution approving an amendment to the governance structure of the IA as set forth in the Consortium Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the boards of a majority of the Participating Districts have adopted resolutions ratifying and approving the amended governance structure adopted by the JSC; and

WHEREAS, the amended governance structure provides that the IA Consortium shall be governed by a five-member body consisting of the duly appointed representatives of its three Fiscal Agents and two additional at-large members elected by majority vote of all Participating Districts; and

WHEREAS, with respect to the initial election of the two at-large members, who are to serve two-year terms, the Fiscal Agent representatives shall create a ballot with the names of the Superintendents (or their designees) of all Participating Districts that wish to have representation on the Governing Body and disseminate the ballot to the Participating Districts' boards for vote; and

WHEREAS, placement on the ballot shall require a resolution of a Participating District's board designating the district's Superintendent (or his/her designee) as that district's proposed representative as an at-large member of the Governing Body, with the election to take place as soon as practicable after the effective date of the amendment to the governing structure of the IA; and

WHEREAS, the only two Participating Districts whose boards have adopted a resolution designating their district's Superintendent (or his/her designee) as that district's proposed representative as an at-large member of the Governing Body are Rochester Community Schools (Superintendent Dr. Robert Shaner) and Birmingham Public Schools (Superintendent Mark Dziatczak); and

WHEREAS, the Board has been presented with a ballot created by the Fiscal Agent representatives with the names of Rochester Community Schools Superintendent Dr. Robert Shaner (or his designee) and Birmingham Public Schools Superintendent Mark Dziatczak (or his designee) for vote to serve as the two at-large members of the Governing Body for two-year terms; and

WHEREAS, the Board deems it to be in the best interests of the District to cast its vote for the above mentioned Superintendents (or their designees) to serve as the two at-large members of the Governing Body;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

- 1. The Board hereby casts its vote to have Rochester Community Schools Superintendent Dr. Robert Shaner (or his designee) and Birmingham Public Schools Superintendent Mark Dziatczak (or his designee) serve as the two at-large members of the IA Governing Body.
- 2. All other resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the provisions of this resolution are hereby rescinded.

Acting Secretary
Board of Education
Waterford School District

I hereby certify that the foregoing constitutes a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the Board of Education of Waterford School District, County of Oakland, State of Michigan, at a regular meeting held on June 18, 2020, and that the meeting was conducted and public notice of the meeting was given pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act, being Act 267, Public Acts of 1976, and that minutes of said meeting were kept and will be or have been made available as required by said Act.

Acting Secretary
Board of Education
Waterford School District

$\Lambda \Gamma$	ΓION	
$\mathbf{A}(\cdot)$	וועאוו	

WATERFORD SCHOOL DISTRICT Board of Education 501 N. Cass Lake Road Waterford, Michigan 48328

ITEM NO ·	11 a (3)	NEW BUSINESS	;
	11.0.101	INE VV DOCINEOU	,

Superintendent's Recommendation 103-19-20

TOPIC: International Academy Consortium Agreement

It is recommended that the Board of Education approve the attached resolution relative to the International Academy Consortium Agreement, as approved by the IA Joint Steering Committee.

Resource Person: Scott A. Lindberg, Superintendent of Schools

Date of Board of Education Meeting: June 18, 2020

WATERFORD SCHOOL DISTRICT COUNTY OF OAKLAND STATE OF MICHIGAN

RESOLUTION REGARDING INTERNATIONAL ACADEMY AGREEMENT

A regular meeting of the Board of Education (the "Board") of Waterford School District (the "District") was held on June 18, 2020, at6:30 p.m.

The meeting was called to order by Michael Ristich, Ph.D., President

Presei	nt:							_
Abser	nt:							
The	following	nreamhle	and	resolution	were	offered	by	Mer

WHEREAS, the District is a Participating District in the International Academy ("IA") and is a party to the Consortium Agreement that sets forth the terms and conditions by which the IA is governed and operates; and

WHEREAS, at the October 2, 2019 meeting of the IA's Joint Steering Committee ("JSC"), the JSC adopted a Resolution approving an amendment to the governance structure of the IA as set forth in the Consortium Agreement; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the process set forth in the Consortium Agreement, the boards of a majority of the Participating Districts have adopted resolutions ratifying and approving the amended governance structure adopted by the JSC; and

WHEREAS, the Consortium Agreement provides in Section X, Paragraph 5 that it may be amended or modified only by a written instrument executed by a majority of the Participating; and

WHEREAS, the JSC has circulated a proposed and Amended International Academy Consortium Agreement, the terms of which are set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto, for consideration and approval by the boards of the Participating Districts; and

WHEREAS, upon thorough and thoughtful consideration of the terms of the proposed Amended Consortium Agreement, the Board deems it to be in the best interests of the District to approve the same and to authorize the District's Superintendent to execute the same on the District's behalf;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

- 1. The Board hereby approves the proposed Amended Consortium Agreement, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and authorizes the District's Superintendent to execute the same on the District's behalf.
- 2. All other resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the provisions of this resolution are hereby rescinded.

Acting Secretary
Board of Education
Waterford School District

I hereby certify that the foregoing constitutes a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the Board of Education of Waterford School District, County of Oakland State of Michigan, at a regular meeting held on June 18, 2020, and that the meeting was conducted and public notice of the meeting was given pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act, being Act 267, Public Acts of 1976, and that minutes of said meeting were kept and will be or have been made available as required by said Act.

Acting Secretary Board of Education Waterford School District

ACTION

WATERFORD SCHOOL DISTRICT Board of Education 501 N. Cass Lake Road Waterford, MI 48328

ITEM NO: 11.a(4) NEW BUSINESS

Superintendent's Recommendation 104-19-20

TOPIC: Continuing Employment of Teaching Personnel for the

2019-2020 School Year

RECOMMENDATION:

That the Board of Education accept the recommendation of the Superintendent for the re-employment of teaching personnel for the 2020-2021 school year per the attached list.

Resource Persons(s): Scott Lindberg, Superintendent of Schools

Date of Board of Education Meeting: June 18, 2020

ABAD-BLOUIN, DENISE HOLLY ABRAHAM, GINA ABRAMS, SUSAN BETH ACHTMAN, LINDSAY ACKLEY, JESSICA ADKINS, RANDALL S ALEXANDER, REBEKAH ALEXIS, BLAIR ALFANO, LISA AMBOIAN, CYNTHIA A ANAYA, MARY KATHLEEN ANDERS, DAWNA L ANDERSON, KIRK D ANDRIEUX, SARA MAY ATKINSON, KATELYN AUSTIN, JOSEPH P BABCOCK, CASSANDRA N BABCOCK, DORI BACK, ASHLEY BAETENS, ELIZABETH G BAKER, GAIL M BALL, ALEXANDRA BALLEW. CHRISTEN A BANAS, SARAH E BANDLOW, MONICA BARCEY, DEANNA BARES, JENNIFER BARNEY, SHANNON M BARRON, ANDREW E BATCHELDER, LISA BATULIS, SHEA JANELLE BAZNER, JASON BEACH, STACEY BEARD, MERLYN BEASLEY, DIANNA BELCHER, CHARLES J BELL, JACQUELYN BELPASSO, ASHLEY BENHAM, NICOLE BERLIN, HOWARD BEROFF, MICHAEL BICKNELL, CATHERINE P BIENENFELD, ANNA BIKSON, STUART BIRCHMEIER, LUANN M BISBING, KENZI J BLASZCZAK, BREANNA B BLITCHOK, JESSICA L BOWER, PAMELA N BOWERSOX, GEORGE EDWARD

BRAUE, CHRISTOPHER BRIGGS, REBECCA L BRITTEN, NATALIE B BROKAW, DEBORAH J BROKAW, HANNAH BROSSEAU, MARITHA L BROWN, JAMIE E BROWN, JOSEPH A BROWN, KATHLEEN BRUCE, TAMMY ANN BRUCKNER, REBECCA J BRYCE, RACHEL S BUCHANAN, ASHLEY C BURLINGAME, CHRISTOPHER D CALARCO, SUSAN A CAMACHO RODRIGUEZ, CARLA CANNON, TANYA RITA CARLSON, SHARI CASCIOLI, PATRICIA L CASE, SUSAN J CASPER, AIMEE FAYE CASPER, KATE CAUSLEY, TAMMY CEMPURA, COLETTE A CENDROWSKI, SHELLY CAMPBELL CENTALA, ADAM CHAPMAN, LAURA E CHARLEBOIS, MEGAN B CIESINSKI, PAMELA G CIPPONERI, HEATHER J CIURLIK, MARTIN C CLARK, ERIN BOYLE CLARK, RENEE M CLARKE, SANDRA CLIFTON, ANNE CLINE, GRETCHEN CLINGERMAN, RACHEL K COCAGNE, ANDREW COHEN, ABIGAYLE COLLINS, DALE J COLWELL JOHNSON, ANN M CORTESE, CHELSEA COULTER, AIMEE M CRAITE, MARY T CRAWFORD, SUZANNE CREECH, CARRIE A CRESPO, IRMA CRIMMINGS, ERIN NOELLE CROCENZI, BRANDY CROSBY, MAEGAN

CROSLEY, POLLY CROZIER, LINDSEY M CULLEN, DEE CUMMINS, JILL M CURRY, JODI ANN CUTEAN, JOCELYN CYPORYN, CHRISTINE E DAHL, MICHELLE DAMBROSI, MICHELLE R DEBEAUDRY, MELANIE ANN DELEEUW, KRISTIN DENYSENKO-HOH, KRISTINA A DEPOLO III, ALBERT A DEPOLO, AMY M DETERMAN, KELLIE A DETTER, JAMANNA LYNN DILAURA, KAREN DOBRIN, JENNIFER L DOEBLER, JENNIFER M DOMBROWSKI, JULIE K DOWNING, KATHLEEN DOWNS, MARISSA K DUNN. CHELSEA DURYEA, CELESTE DZIADZIO, ANGELA LIN EARLEY, BETH EBRAT, MARY M EISENHART, JEFFREY M ELAND. LINDA A ELTON, DIANE L ENGEL, LISA ENGEL, RACHEL LYNN ENGLE, CHRISTY A ENNIS, JOHN EROYAN, JASON ESBROOK, JAMES ROBERT EUASHKA, ANGELA FAIRLESS, MEGHAN E FALL, CATHRYN C FARAH, ALLISON M FARLEY, COLLEEN R FARLEY, PATRICK FARR, EMMA L FEARN, ERICA FEELEY, SARAH FOLEY-BARBER, NANCY ELIZABETH FOLLICK, PAMELA G FORD, JENNIFER LYNN FOURNIER, NICOLE FRANK, JASON SCOTT

FRASER, EMILY FRAZEE, NICHOLAS J FREED, NICOLE R FRIZZLE-REKAR, TARA L FROMWILLER, JEFFREY FROMWILLER, VAN FRONTIER, SARA J FUDERER, INGRID FULKS, DANNY FURNEY, SARAH NICOLE GABER, MARY J GARDNER, DAVID B GARLING, JENNIFER L GESAMAN, LISA M GIGLIO, TONI LOUISE GILDERS, CHRISTINA GILLING, TIFFANY A GLOSCH, EMILY A GONZALEZ, CARLA GORKIEWICZ, ANGELA GRANT, MEGAN GRAY, ASHLEY GREENWOOD, TABITHA GREER, MEREDITH GRIFFITH, KIMBERLY R GROFF, LORI L GROSS, JULIE LYNN GROSSMAN, ROSS GROSSNICKLE, MARGARET GUI, VALERIYA GUZZARDO, LINDSAY ERIN HAAS, LINDSAY HAGAN, JESSICA HALLER, NANCY JEAN HAMM, JILLIAN HAMWAY, DAVID HANNA, BRETT HANNA, EMILY NICOLE HARGRAVES, TAYLOR A HARNESS, MICHELLE K HARPSTER, LAUREN HARTLEY, SUSAN B HARTSUFF, SUSAN HARTZ, LAUREN E HECKLER, JAMES HEDGCOCK, MELISSA HEILIG, COURTNEY B HEMBREE. KENNETH W HERRIN, HOLLY A HIATT, DAVID JAMES

HICKS, ADRIAN HIMMELSPACH, JANET HOOD, MARC A HOOK, ELIZABETH A HOORNAERT, ERIKA HORNBACHER, LAURA M HOSEY, KASEY HOUSE, NATALIE HOUSTON, REBECCA R HOWARD, LINDSAY HUDEC-TAPLIN, STACEY L HUDSON, ASHLEY HUGHES, BRANDON CHRISTOPHE KORTLANDT, SCOTT A HUGHES, MICHELLE E HUMPHREY, JOSEPH B HUNT, LORI B HURLEY, KELLY IHNAT, MICHELLE INMAN, MARNEE ISBELL, STACY MARIE ISGRIGG, STEPHANIE IVEY, TYLISE MARIE JACKMAN, GARY M JACKSON, ALYSSA A JACKSON, NICHOL JACOB, ERIKA E JAMES, SHAUNA JANCZAREK, JENIFER R JARONESKI, STACEY L JAYSON, JEFFREY J JENKINS, LAURA JENKS, CHRISTINA B JERGLER, CHARLES JERGLER, JENNIFER L JOHNSON, HEATHER JOHNSON, JESSICA L JOHNSON, JUSTIN L JOHNSON, PAMELA A JOHNSON, SARAH A JOHNSON, SCOTT RICHARD JONES, SHANNON LEE JORDAN, ELIZABETH N JULIANO, AMANDA KAAN, LAURA E KACZMAREK, LISA M KARPUSHENKOFF, JENNIFER KATAKOWSKI, JEFFREY KEEBAUGH, LINDSAY KELLY, KAREN E KELLY, KATHLEEN M

KENDZIUK, ELIZABETH T KETCHEM, JESSICA M KHANUJA, TERI MARIE KILBRIDE, CHRISTINE KIMBALL, AMBER MARIA KING, CRAIG R KING, KIMBERLY KING, LEAH KINGSTON, LINDA KLINE, STEPHANIE KLOPMAN, AMY E KOTT, HOLLI EULENE KOZLOWSKI, JOSHUA K KREZEL, MARY A KURRLE, CANDICE L KURTH, DAVID KUTCHEY, ELIZABETH A LADUKE, CYNTHIA M LAJCAJ, ANTON LAKE, DANIEL F LAMKIN, MORGAN E LANDOLT, CAROLYN LANE, JANET M LARGES, KELLY LASKOWSKI, ERIKA M LATHWELL, KELLI LAURSEN, ANTHONY G LEBOW, MICHAEL T LECHNER, JANE CAROL LEDUC, DAVID LENNOX, APRIL C LEONARD, STEPHANIE LEWANDOWSKI, DEBORAH LIBSTAFF, KRISTOFER L LIEDEL, DANIEL LILLIS, MICHELLE R LIMONES, MARIA D LINDSAY, SHELBY LYNN LISS, AMY G LIST, SANDRA LLOYD, JEREMY LYNN LLOYD, LINDSAY LAURA LOLLIS, ALEXANDRA B LONTEEN, ADRIAN M LOVELACE, JESSICA LAUREN LUMETTA. MATTHEW D LUMETTA, MICHELLE RENEE MACY, MEGHAN

KELLY, LAUREN

MAHONEY, PAMELA MAILLOUX, KATHLEEN MARIE MALINOWSKI, ANNETTE MALOSH, DENISE M MALYSZ, LISA MANN, SAMANTHA MARINO MANNA. JAIME ANGELA MARKS, VANESSA K MARSHALL, MARSHA L MARSHALL, WILLIAM E MARTIN, JILL M MARTIN, JOHN M MARTINEZ, VANESSA R MATHIAK, KELLY M MATOSZ, KATHERINE L MATTHEWS, REBECCA LYNN MAUL, NICOLE MAUSOLF, ANNMARIE MAYER, JESSICA LAUREN MAYLE, JENNIFER MCALLISTER, KYLE G MCCLAIN, KIMBERLY I MCDONALD, BRITNEY E MCEVILLY, TAYLOR MCGEE, KIMBERLY A MCGILL, MELISSA MAUREEN MCGOWAN, COREY MCGRAN, COLLIN JOSEPH MCGRATH, MEAGAN MCKEE, DEVON M MCLACHLAN, BETSEY MCLAREN, BETH MCNEIL, AMY MEEKER, RAYMOND W MENDEZ, MICHELLE MARIE MENIG, KATHRYN MIHALCHEON, KATHRYN G MILCH, CARLA L MILES, ALICIA MILES, LUCY MILLER, ANDREW M MILLER, ANTHONY M MILLER, LARISSA MINGER, DAVID MITCHELL, JOCELYN MITTON, OLIVIA A MOCCIA, DAVID SCOTT MOGILL, DANIEL MONTGOMERY, MEREDITH A MOORE, KRISTI L

MORRISSEY, TRICIA MORSE, MELISSA ANNE MOSSERI, KAITLIN MOZDZIERZ, NEAL MUHLECK, KATHLEEN V MULARCZYK, KRISTINA MURRAY, REBECCA NAHS, CHRISTA NAISH, KATHERINE C NATZKE, STEPHANIE MARIE NEAL, HEATHER KRISTINE NEGOSHIAN, RYAN T NELSON, BARBARA M NEWBERRY, MARGARET A NEWER, KAROLINE NOBLE-FARMILOE, ANNETTE L NOLAN, ANNE H NOVALES, ADRIENNE MARIE NUCKOLLS, HEATHER RENEE NYE, JENNIFER L OBOYLE, LAURA ORLOWSKI, HEATHER L OROURKE, JOANN M OUELLETTE, CHRISTOPHER J OUELLETTE, MIRANDA J PANCZAK, LORI PARKER, LISA M PARKS, BARBARA PARRENT, MARY PATEL, CHRISTY PATHE, SHANNON S PATTERSON, JENNIFER L PAULSEN, REBECCA S PECHUR, KELLY J PECKHAM, LINDSAY JEAN PELTON, ELIZABETH J PERI, RENAE MARIE PERRY, JEAN PHIFER, CHRISTOPHER JOHN PHILIPP, DAVID A PHILLIPS, JON AARON PIER. NINA PIETROFESA, PAUL PODE, LAURA GAYE POTTERFIELD, LAUREN POWELL, KRISTEN MARIE PRAINITO, ALLISON PREISTER. RENEE PRESTON, KATELYN D PRIESTLEY, RICHARD

PROTIVA, CRISTINA PROULX, ASHLEY PUDDY, FRANK PYLVAINEN, SANDRA QUETELL, LYNN N RACINE, ABBIE R RAGAN. KELLY J RAINES, JOSEPH RAINOLDI, HEATHER RAMOS, MARGARET REDICK, ANGELA REED, KATHLEEN CARRY REICHE, ANN M REYBURN, TRACY RICCARDI, SANDRA M RICHARDS, JEFFREY RICHARDS, JILL RIFKIN, CASEY E RINEER, AMANDA RINEHART, NICHOLE C RISTICH, JESSICA LEE ROBAK, MARTA L ROBERTSON, ELIZABETH ANNE ROBINSON, KRISTIN LYNN RODRIGUEZ, CHELSEA ROETHLISBERGER, KARI ROSCHEFSKI, REBECCA M ROSE, LADONNA ROY, KELLY D RULE, JULIE M RUNK, LAURIE RUNYAN, ANGELA C RUSHMAN, PETER D RUZZIN, JASON T RYAN, ANASTASIA SALETTA, MARGARET C SAPIANO, DONICA SCHAEFFER, JOHN G SCHAFER, DEVYN SCHAFER, PAMELA A SCHLAUFMAN, CRAIG SCHMIDT, KENNETH S SCHOONOVER, JOSEPHINE L SCHUETT, ANNA SCHULTE, HANNAH SCHULTZ, AMANDA SCHULTZ, HEATHER SCRAM, KATHERINE A SCURTI, LINDSAY SEKULOVSKI, ALEXANDRA

SHANNAHAN, BETH L SHARRARD, JUSTIN JAMES SHELTON, MARY A SHELTON, MICHAEL P SHURMUR, STEVEN W SIMIELE, CHRISTINE L SIMMONS, LINDSAY SIMS, SUSANNE N SKLAR, MICHELLE SMITH, MICHAELA SMOLINSKI-BROCKINGTON, ELIZABETH SNOW, STACY SOKOL, DENISE A SPINELLI PARTOGIAN, LISA ST ONGE, BONNIE STACK, AMY C STACK, ROBERT A STANJONES, LAURA STAUBACH, CHERI A STEPANSKI, SANDRA KAY STEPHAN, NORMAN M STERNBERG, REBECCA STEVENS, NATALIE STEVENSON, JEFFREY G STEWART, CHARLES N STINSON, JULIE E STRAITH, BRITTANY L SUCHANEK, KELLY L SWIATKOWSKI, HOLLY TAGUE, RACHEL M TAYLOR, CHERYL TCHOLAKIAN, HAIGAN R TECMIRE, LAUREN NICHOLE TEREGAN, PAIGE THOMPSON, ELAINE R THOMPSON, MICHELLE ANN THOMPSON, TERESA D THORELL, MARY A TIMKO, MICHAEL STEVEN TOBIS, DANIEL TOERPER, DANIELLE NICOLE TOTTEN, JEFFREY S TOWNS, BARBARA TREMAIN, JOEL TROUT, JENNIFER TUNNICLIFF, JEFFREY TYNDORF, MARISSA J TYSON, JAMIE UHNAVY-MORAN, KAREN A

VANDENBERG, CHRISTINE J

VANDENPLAS, MEGHAN A VASSILAKOS, KARIN A VAUGHN, SARAH M VICTOR, TAMRA L VINE, MAKI M WALKER, MORGAN WALLACE, JOYCE F WALRATH, DONALD J WARD, CHRISTY M WARD, KATHRYN MARIE WASILK, KIMBERLY WATTENY, STEPHANIE A WENZELL, BRIAN WERNER, AMY WHITE, JENNIFER WHITE, REGINA WHITELEY, KATELYN WHOLEHAN, CORY E WICHTMAN, HEATHER A WILCOX, DENEB R WILEY, DEREK J WILLIAMS, KAITLYN T WILLIAMSON, KIMBERLY LYNN WILLMAN, DIANE MARIE WIRZ, KRISTEN M WISEMAN, ANTHONY T WISEMAN, LAUREN E WOJACK, JEFFREY ROBERT WOLFF, SARAH S WOOD, JOSEPH W WOODWARD, ALICE J WOODWARD, CATHY L WOODWARD, LISA MARIE WOODWARD, REBECCA WORDEN, MARY S WYBER, MARY KATHRYN WYLIN, NOELLE HARB WYNIEMKO, KENDRA P YANG, MELISSA YATES, SARAH M YOUNG, WILLIAM B ZEDAN, GEORGE ZEMINA, ASHLEY ZIELINSKI, SARA ZWIREN, JODIE MICHELLE

WATERFORD SCHOOL DISTRICT Board of Education 501 N. Cass Lake Road Waterford, MI 48328

ITEM NO: 11.a.(5) NEW BUSINESS

Superintendent's Recommendation 105-19-20

TOPIC: Continuing Employment of Administrative Personnel

RECOMMENDATION:

That the Board of Education accept the recommendation of the Superintendent for the re-employment of administrative personnel on a non-administrative tenure basis, for a period of two years, July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2022, subject to appropriate written notice of termination prior to June 30, 2020, due to conditions requiring probation, layoff, reassignment and/or personnel reduction and termination. The following are the administrators so re-employed:

Allen, Kelly Director, School & Community Services

Batten, Michael Elementary Principal

Beaver, James Director, Operations, Transportation, and Security

Behrendt, Diane Principal, Children's Village School Blaine, Tanya Middle School Assistant Principal

Blomquist, Craig High School Principal Cooper, Debra High School Principal

Dagenhardt, Amy
Director, Finance and Budget
Middle School Principal

Eldredge, Lisa Assistant Superintendent, Teaching and Learning Services

Force, Catherine Elementary Principal

Gregory, John Principal, Kingsley Montgomery School

Gregory, Nicholas High School Assistant Principal

Grimes, Valerie Elementary Principal Guizzetti, Leslie Elementary Principal

Harding, Christina High School Assistant Principal

Holley, Darin Director, Instructional Services and Technology

Howard, Lisa Director, Benefits and Payroll Kilyk, Cheri Human Resources Coordinator Kokoszka, Kevin High School Assistant Principal

Kruse, Anne Elementary Principal Lam, Samantha Elementary Principal

Milostan, Nadine Executive Director, Student Support Services Mozdzierz, Samantha Director, Nutrition and Purchasing Services

Opsommer, Roger Middle School Principal

Roberts, Megan Administrative Assistant, Board/Superintendent

Rolack, Erica Elementary Principal Sartorius, Allison Director, Athletics

Schultz, Kyle Middle School Assistant Principal

Schultz, Laura Administrative Assistant, Human Resources

Smith, Laura Elementary Principal

Stone, Carly Director, Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment

Sullivan, Michelle Taylor, Lori Velez, Alexandra Werthman, Shelley Wright, Stacy Elementary Principal
Dean of Students, Academic Center
Elementary Principal
High School Assistant Principal
Administrative Assistant, Superintendent

Resource Person(s): Scott Lindberg, Superintendent of Schools

Date of Board of Education Meeting: June 18, 2020

2020-2021 EDUSstaff Employees

John Keglovitz, Associate Director of Maintenance & Operations

	\sim		$\overline{}$	
Α	(;	П	()	N

WATERFORD SCHOOL DISTRICT Board of Education 501 N. Cass Lake Road Waterford, Michigan 48328

ITEM NO.: 11.a.(6) NEW BUSINESS

Superintendent's Recommendation 106-19-20

TOPIC: Meal Prices: 2020-2021

It is recommended that the Board of Education approve the following school meal prices for the 2020/2021 school year. Prices remain the same as the 2019/20 school year.

<u>Breakfast</u>	<u>19/20</u>	20/21
Elementary	\$1.75	\$1.75
Secondary	\$1.75	\$1.75
Adult	\$2.50	\$2.50
Lunch	<u>19/20</u>	20/21
Elementary	\$2.75	\$2.75
Secondary	\$3.00	\$3.00
Adult	\$4.25	\$4.25

Resource Person: William Holbrook, Assistant Superintendent, Business & Operations

Samantha Mozdzierz, Director Nutrition & Purchasing

Date of Board of Education Meeting: June 18, 2020

ACTION

WATERFORD SCHOOL DISTRICT Board of Education 501 North Cass Lake Road Waterford, MI 48328

ITEM NO: 11.a(7) NEW BUSINESS

Superintendent's Recommendation 107-19-20

TOPIC: Millage Rates – 2020-2021

The Administration recommends the Waterford Board of Education certify the following tax levy to the Charter Townships of Waterford, Independence, White Lake, West Bloomfield, and the City of Lake Angelus for the 2020-2021 School District Tax Collection.

General Operating: (Non Homestead)

Voted 2012	<u>18.00</u>	Mills
Total Authorized	18.00	Mills

Compound Reduction Fraction * 1.00 Based on \$2,619,815,348
Total to be Levied 18.00 Mills Taxable Value

<u>Debt Retirement:</u> (All Property)

Total to be Levied 6.75 Mills

Total Levy:

Total Tax Levy Homestead 6.75 Mills

Total Tax Levy Non-Homestead <u>24.75</u> Mills

The total levy (100%) is to be made in July 2020.

Resource Person: William Holbrook, CPA, Assistant Superintendent, Business & Operations

Amy Dagenhardt, Director of Finance and Budget

Date of Board of Education Meeting: <u>June 18, 2020</u>

^{*} The 18 mill Non-Homestead property tax is subject to the Headlee Rollback calculation (Compound Reduction Fraction). The reduction fraction is calculated by Oakland County and is provided to Districts annually prior to June 1st.

ACTION

WATERFORD SCHOOL DISTRICT Board of Education 501 North Cass Lake Road Waterford, MI 48328

ITEM NO: 11.a.(8) NEW BUSINESS

Superintendent's Recommendation 108-19-20

TOPIC: Resolution for Adoption by the Board of Education of Waterford

School District Revised Budget 2019-2020.

RESOLVED, that this resolution shall be the general appropriations, Waterford School District for fiscal year 2019-2020. A resolution to make appropriations; and to provide for the expenditure of the appropriations; and to provide for the disposition of all income received by Waterford School District. The property tax rate will be 18 mills on non-homestead property. The proceeds will be used to pay General Fund operating expenses.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the total revenues and unappropriated fund balance available for appropriations in the General Fund of the Waterford School District for fiscal year 2019-2020 is as follows:

GENERAL FUND

REVENUE

Local	\$ 13,532,169
State	67,789,499
Federal	6,413,290
Incoming Transfers & Other Financing Sources	5,393,679
Transfers In (Food Service)	 250,000
Total Revenue	\$ 93,378,637
Fund Balance July 1, 2019	\$ 9,425,881
Total Available to Appropriate	\$ 102,804,518

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that \$97,222,161 of the total available to appropriate in the General Fund is hereby appropriated in the amounts and for the purposes set forth below:

EXPENDITURES

Instruction:	
Basic Programs	\$ 22,590,701
Added Needs	15,196,786
Instruction - Employee Benefits	12,429,963
Support Services:	
Pupil Services	7,450,968
Instructional Services	2,070,002
General Administration	1,150,268
School Administration	3,919,305
Business Services	11,719,245
Central Services	3,944,206
Support Services - Employee Benefits	6,808,488
Athletics	1,284,715
Community Services	56,928
Federal Programs	6,806,369
Debt Service	1,057,875
Outgoing Transfers	736,342
Teacher Retirement Savings	-
Total Expenditures	\$ 97,222,161
Fund Balance Unassigned	\$ 5,582,357
Non Spendable - Prepaids	 -
Fund Balance June 30, 2020	\$ 5,582,357

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the total revenue and unappropriated fund balance available for appropriations in the School Service Fund of the Waterford School District for fiscal year 2019-2020 is as follows:

SCHOOL SERVICE FUND

REVENUE

Local	\$ 6,318,647
State	170,313
Federal	3,089,492
Incoming Transfers and Other Transactions	 736,342
Total Revenues and Incoming Transfers	\$ 10,314,794
Fund Balance July 1, 2019	\$ 1,494,264
Less Appropriated Fund Balance (Reserve for Inventory)	21,033
Fund Balance Available to Appropriate	\$ 1,473,231
Total Available to Appropriate	\$ 11,788,025

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that \$8,598,394 of the total available to appropriate in the School Service Fund is hereby appropriated in the amounts and for the purposes set forth below:

EXPENDITURES

Food Service Performing Arts Centers Pool & Fitness Centers Childcare	\$ 4,855,170 281,627 683,726
Senior Citizens	1,855,194 922,677
Total Expenditures	\$ 8,598,394
Unassigned Fund Balance - Child Care Restricted Fund Balance - Food Service Non Spendable - Food Serv Inventory	\$ - 1,473,231 21,033
Fund Balance June 30, 2020	\$ 1,494,264

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the total revenue and unappropriated fund balance available for appropriations in the Special Education Center Program Fund of the Waterford School District for fiscal year 2019-2020 is as follows:

SPECIAL EDUCATION CENTER PROGRAMS

REVENUE

State	\$ 1,405,971
Incoming Transfers and Other Transactions	 4,886,951
Total Revenues and Incoming Transfer	\$ 6,292,922
Fund Balance July 1, 2019	\$ 781,748
Total Available to Appropriate	\$ 7,074,670

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that \$6,292,922 of the total available to appropriate in the Special Education Center Program Fund is hereby appropriated in the amounts and for the purposes set forth below:

\$ 2,415,890
1,036,527
1,501,458
433,984
1,644,054
(607,988)
(131,003)
\$ 6,292,922
\$ 781,748

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the total revenue and unappropriated fund balance available for appropriations in the Debt Retirement Fund of the Waterford School District for fiscal year 2019-2020 is as follows:

DEBT RETIREMENT FUND

<u>REVENUE</u>

Local Property Taxes	\$ 16,879,517
Total Revenue	\$ 16,879,517
Fund Balance July 1, 2019	\$ 1,714,811
Total Available to Appropriate	\$ 18,594,328

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that \$17,698,938 of the total available to appropriate in the Debt Retirement Fund is hereby appropriated in the amounts and for the purposes set forth below:

EXPENDITURES

Redemption of Bond Principal	\$ 12,975,000
Interest on Bonded Debt	4,643,938
Other	80,000
Total Expenditures	\$ 17,698,938
Restricted Fund Balance June 30, 2020	\$ 895,390

FUTHER RESOLVED, that no Board of Education member or employee of the school district shall expend any fund or obligate the expenditure of any funds except pursuant to appropriations made by the Board of Education. Changes in the amount appropriated by the Board shall require approval by the Board.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Superintendent is hereby charged with general supervision of the execution of the budget adopted by the Board and shall hold the department heads responsible for performance of their responsibilities within the amounts appropriated by the Board of Education.

Resource Persons: William Holbrook, CPA, Assistant Superintendent Business and Operations

Amy Dagenhardt, Director of Finance and Budget

Action

WATERFORD SCHOOL DISTRICT Board of Education 501 North Cass Lake Road Waterford, MI 48328

ITEM NO: 11.a.(9) NEW BUSINESS

Superintendent's Recommendation 109-19-20

TOPIC: Resolution for Adoption by the Board of Education of Waterford School

District Original Budget 2020-2021.

RESOLVED, that this resolution shall be the general appropriations, Waterford School District for fiscal year 2020-2021. A resolution to make appropriations; and to provide for the expenditure of the appropriations; and to provide for the disposition of all income received by Waterford School District. The property tax rate will be 18 mills on non-homestead property. The proceeds will be used to pay General Fund operating expenses.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the total revenues and unappropriated fund balance available for appropriations in the General Fund of the Waterford School District for fiscal year 2020-2021 is as follows:

GENERAL FUND

REVENUE

Local	\$ 13,529,603
State	65,733,746
Federal	7,414,616
Incoming Transfers & Other Financing Sources	5,605,480
Transfers In (Food Service)	250,000
Total Revenue	\$ 92,533,445
Fund Balance July 1, 2020	\$ 6,082,357
Total Available to Appropriate	\$ 98,615,802

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that \$97,858,686 of the total available to appropriate in the General Fund is hereby appropriated in the amounts and for the purposes set forth below:

Instruction:	
Basic Programs	\$ 22,907,556
Added Needs	15,150,165
Instruction - Employee Benefits	12,429,963
Support Services:	
Pupil Services	7,577,375
Instructional Services	2,340,823
General Administration	1,345,313
School Administration	3,965,259
Business Services	11,917,910
Central Services	3,941,163
Support Services - Employee Benefits	6,808,488
Athletics	1,364,798
Community Services	56,928
Federal Programs	6,707,695
Debt Service	1,012,125
Outgoing Transfers	633,125
Teacher Retirement Savings	 (300,000)
Total Expenditures	\$ 97,858,686
Fund Balance Unassigned	\$ 757,116
Non Spendable - Prepaids	-
Fund Balance June 30, 2021	\$ 757,116

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the total revenue and unappropriated fund balance available for appropriations in the School Service Fund of the Waterford School District for fiscal year 2020-2021 is as follows:

SCHOOL SERVICE FUND

REVENUE

Local	\$ 6,421,864
State	170,313
Federal	3,089,492
Incoming Transfers and Other Transactions	633,125
Total Revenues and Incoming Transfers	\$ 10,314,794
Fund Balance July 1, 2020	\$ 1,494,264
Less Appropriated Fund Balance (Reserve for Inventory)	21,033
Fund Balance Available to Appropriate	\$ 1,473,231
Total Available to Appropriate	\$ 11,788,025

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that \$8,598,394 of the total available to appropriate in the School Service Fund is hereby appropriated in the amounts and for the purposes set forth below:

Food Service Performing Arts Centers Pool & Fitness Centers Childcare Senior Citizens	\$ 4,855,170 281,627 683,726 1,855,194 922,677
Total Expenditures	\$ 8,598,394
Unassigned Fund Balance - Child Care Restricted Fund Balance - Food Service Non Spendable - Food Serv Inventory	\$ 1,473,231 21,033
Fund Balance June 30, 2021	\$ 1,494,264

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the total revenue and unappropriated fund balance available for appropriations in the Special Education Center Program Fund of the Waterford School District for fiscal year 2020-2021 is as follows:

SPECIAL EDUCATION CENTER PROGRAMS

REVENUE

State	\$ 1,405,971
Incoming Transfers and Other Transactions	 4,886,951
Total Revenues and Incoming Transfer	\$ 6,292,922
Fund Balance July 1, 2020	\$ 781,748
Total Available to Appropriate	\$ 7,074,670

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that \$6,292,922 of the total available to appropriate in the Special Education Center Program Fund is hereby appropriated in the amounts and for the purposes set forth below:

Instruction	\$ 2,415,890
Support Services - Pupils	1,036,527
Support Services - Instructional Staff	1,501,458
Transportation	433,984
Oakland Schools Resident Tuition	1,644,054
Redistributed Indirect Expenditures	(607,988)
Redistributed Rent Expenditure	(131,003)
Total Expenditures	\$ 6,292,922
Restricted Fund Balance June 30, 2021	\$ 781,748

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the total revenue and unappropriated fund balance available for appropriations in the Debt Retirement Fund of the Waterford School District for fiscal year 2020-2021 is as follows:

DEBT RETIREMENT FUND

REVENUE

Local Property Taxes	\$ 17,683,754
Total Revenue	\$ 17,683,754
Fund Balance July 1, 2020	\$ 895,390
Total Available to Appropriate	\$ 18,579,144

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that \$17,404,138 of the total available to appropriate in the Debt Retirement Fund is hereby appropriated in the amounts and for the purposes set forth below:

EXPENDITURES

Redemption of Bond Principal	\$ 13,080,000
Interest on Bonded Debt	4,321,638
Other	2,500
Total Expenditures	\$ 17,404,138
Restricted Fund Balance June 30, 2021	\$ 1,175,006

FUTHER RESOLVED, that no Board of Education member or employee of the school district shall expend any fund or obligate the expenditure of any funds except pursuant to appropriations made by the Board of Education. Changes in the amount appropriated by the Board shall require approval by the Board.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Superintendent is hereby charged with general supervision of the execution of the budget adopted by the Board and shall hold the department heads responsible for performance of their responsibilities within the amounts appropriated by the Board of Education.

Resource Persons: William Holbrook, CPA, Assistant Superintendent Business and Operations

Amy Dagenhardt, Director of Finance and Budget

WATERFORD SCHOOL DISTRICT Board of Education 501 N. Cass Lake Road Waterford, Michigan 48328

ITEM NO.: 11.b.(1) NEW BUSINESS: Consideration of Certain Purchases

Superintendent's Recommendation 110-19-20

TOPIC: 2020/21 Instructional Equipment

The Waterford School District secured a quote with PRESIDO Networked Solutions Group LLC to purchase 47 instructional equipment laptop devices. The use of these laptops will be 100 percent for special education.

Vendor	Brand	Model	Unit Price	Quantity	Total
PRESIDIO	Dell	Dell Latitude 3500	678.00	47	\$31,866.00

It is recommended that the board of education approve the purchase of 47 Dell Latitude instructional educational laptop devices in the amount of \$31,866.

Funding: IDEA & General Funds

Resource Persons: <u>Darin Holley, Director of Instructional Services & Technology</u>

Nadine M. Milostan, Executive Director of Student Support Services

ACTION

WATERFORD SCHOOL DISTRICT Board of Education 501 North Cass Lake Road Waterford, MI 48328

ITEM NO: 11.c.(1) NEW BUSINESS

President's Recommendation 111-19-20

TOPIC: Continuing Employment of the Superintendent

It is recommended that the Board of Education approve the Superintendent's Contract of Employment, with revisions, extending the contract through June 30, 2023 to maintain a three year contract.

Resource Person: Michael Ristich, Ph.D., President

Date of Board of Education Meeting: <u>June 18, 2020</u>

_	_	
$\Lambda \cap \Gamma$	TION .	
ΔU	ΓION	

WATERFORD SCHOOL DISTRICT Board of Education 501 N. Cass Lake Road Waterford, Michigan 48328

ITEM NO.: 11.c.((2) NEV	V BUSINESS
------------------	---------	-------------------

President's Recommendation 112-19-20

TOPIC: Board of Education Operating Norms

It is recommended that the Board of Education reaffirm the attached Operating Norms, previously adopted by the Board of Education.

Resource Person: Michael Ristich, Ph.D., President

Waterford School District Board of Education

Operating Norms

We will...

- Speak with one voice once decisions are made.
- Serve as the community's "eyes and ears" and communicate information that may not be well known to the administration in the form of a non-directive "heads up."
- Be visible in the community.
- Ask questions, be willing to learn.
- Be prepared.
- Govern in an atmosphere that encourages and respects free expressions of opinions and ideas, whether in the minority or majority.
- Not surprise one another.
- Admit what we don't know.
- Keep our minds open to change.
- Remain responsible to all students and members of the community.
- Communicate openly, honestly and constructively.
- Maintain confidentiality.
- Model civility.
- Demonstrate a clear distinction between the roles of the board and the administration.
- Speak as one voice, not as individuals, when giving direction to the superintendent.
- As individuals, not direct actions or request information that requires significant amounts of additional work or time from the superintendent or staff.
- Actively listen to complaints or concerns regarding District activities and then advise the individual on how best to proceed.
- Communicate officially with the staff through the superintendent as much as possible.
- Delegate to the superintendent responsibility for all administrative functions, except those specifically reserved to the Board through Board policy.

_	_	
$\Lambda \cap \Gamma$	LION.	
ΔU	LION	

WATERFORD SCHOOL DISTRICT Board of Education 501 N. Cass Lake Road Waterford, Michigan 48328

ITEM NO.:	11.c.(3)	NEW BUSINESS	ò
-----------	----------	--------------	---

President's Recommendation 113-19-20

TOPIC: Committee of the Whole Rules

It is recommended that the Board of Education approve the attached rules for the Committee of the Whole meeting structure.

Resource Person: Michael Ristich, Ph.D., President

Waterford Board of Education PROPOSED RULES FOR COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

AGENDA

The Superintendent shall prepare and submit to each Board member a written agenda prior to each Committee of the Whole (COW) meeting, unless otherwise directed by the Board. The agenda shall list the various matters to come before the Board and shall serve as a guide for the order of procedure for the meeting. Individual Board members may include items on the agenda upon the concurrence of the Board President.

The Board shall transact business according to the agenda prepared by the Superintendent and submitted to all Board members in advance of the meeting. If members of the board wish to have certain matters added or removed from the agenda they should notify the Board President prior to the meeting. The order of business may be altered and items added at any at the direction of the Board President or Superintendent.

Items for discussion will fall under one of the following areas:

- ✓ Governance board regarding policy, board operations and structure.
- ✓ Achievement educational priorities and goals, including programs data and materials to achieve goals.
- ✓ Business & Operations These discussions provide direction and oversight for the district's asset management and planning. It monitors budget reports, reviews facilities and site utilization, and provided input on both financial and facilities planning as well as safety and security.
- ✓ Human Resources personnel matters, staffing issues and union matters involving collective bargaining agreements.
- ✓ Marketing/Communications These discussions provide for dialogue with the communication department regarding public relations and district communications.

The agenda for each COW meeting shall be delivered to each Board member so as to provide proper time for the member to study the agenda. Generally, the agenda should be emailed no later than five (5) days prior to the meeting, or delivered so as to provide time for the study of the agenda by the member. The agenda for a special COW meeting shall be delivered at least twenty-four (24) hours before the meeting, consistent with provisions calling for special meetings.

TIME/DURATION/LOCATION

COW meetings will replace the Interim Regular Meeting, taking place on the first Thursday of the month, with exception, at 6:30 PM. Meetings will be held in Room 104 of Kurzman Administration Services – Crary Campus, 501 N. Cass Lake Road, and will last for no more than 2 hours, unless determined in advance and notice is provided.

Each COW agenda will indicate the time allotted for the discussion of each item. The superintendent will be cognizant of the time allotment made for each topic and will ensure the meeting is not overloaded. The Secretary will be responsible for notifying the Board when it is time to move on to the next topic and the Board will be mindful, suspending the conversation at that time.

PUBLIC COMMENT

The Board will accept Public Comment at the beginning of the agenda. Audience members will adhere to the same guidelines for public participation as at Regular Meetings.

INFORMATION ITEMS

Currently, items that require a Board vote come for first consideration as an "information item" at one meeting before being presented at a following meeting for a vote. Under the COW structure, the Administration will provide a list of items that will be presented for action at the following meeting. Time will be allotted for discussion of these items. When necessary, due to timing constraints, the Board may suspend its rule and an item may be included for information and action during a regular meeting.

ACTION ITEMS

COW meetings will not be utilized for Board action. All matters requiring a Board of Education vote will be presented at a Regular Meeting, including minutes. This rule may be suspended for extenuating circumstances, with Board consensus.

CONTENTIOUS ISSUES

When a contentious issue comes before the committee where consensus on a particular recommendation cannot be reached or where a majority determines that it should not be recommended for adoption, the issue should still be taken to the regular board meeting so that the board can vote on its final disposition. The motion placed before the board should always be phrased in the positive where yes means yes and no means no. During debate on the motion, the majority and minority opinions heard in committee should be succinctly voiced then a vote taken on the issue for final resolution. This does not mean that the motion could not be amended from its original form during debate in the board meeting - the point here is to bring things to the board for a vote so that there can be action or closure and not leave issues unresolved in committee.

VIDEO RECORDINGS

Consistent with Regular Meetings, COW meetings will be recorded by the District's Video Services staff. COW Meetings will be posted online with Regular Meetings.

SUMMARY

It is understood that using a committee of the whole to allow for in-depth, informal consideration of topics is intended to create greater input, dialogue and efficiencies. A committee of the whole should not become a bottleneck where business gets stuck. Rather the use of this form of committee should expedite business by encouraging valuable discussion of the issues, provide a forum where members and staff can bounce ideas to get feedback and create excitement about opportunities to improve programs and services.